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DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT FOR TERRACES AT MANELE
TOWNHOUSE PROJECT ON LANAI (C.C. No. 01-56)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm going to call the Land Use Committee

24

meeting to order.

25

everyone. Today we have for the record

(Gavel.) Good afternoon,
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1

Councilmember Dain Kane present, Councilmember

2

Robert Carroll present, Councilmember Riki Hokama

3

present, Councilwoman Jo Anne Johnson present,

4

Councilmember Michael Molina present, Councilmember

5

Wayne Nishiki present, Councilmember Charmaine

6

Tavares present. Excused Council Chair Pat Kawano.

7

From Administration we have John Min and

8

Julie Higa representing the Planning Department, and

9

Richard Minatoya representing our Corp. Counsel. We

10

have David Raatz and Yvette Bantilan as our staff.

11

Council members, at this time I'm going to --

12

We have no one signed up to testify, so we're going

13

to close testimony. If anyone wanted -- wants to

14

testify, come up now. And since there's no one else

15

here, we're just going to close testimony.

16

We have four items listed on our agenda, and

17

right at the onset I'm going to tell you that LU-32,

18

which is listed on our agenda, we will be deferring.

19

The developer has asked us to defer this item 'cause

20

they are not prepared at this time and they'd -- So

21

we will be deferring this without any objections.

22

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.

24
25

ACTION: DEFER
6

DELETING REFERENCE TO CULTURAL OVERLAY DISTRICTS IN
ORDINANCE NO. 2583 (C.C. No. 01-138
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: We will now start with Item LU-6. This is

2

deleting reference to Cultural Overlay Districts in

3

the Ordinance No. 2583 in your binders. This was a

4

request put in by Councilmember Carroll and it has

5

to do with the Cultural Overlay Districts in Hana.

6

And one of the -- Well, I'll let Councilmember

7

Carroll have the floor.

8
9
10

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. It's been
advised that the proper procedure for this is to
send this back to the Planning Commission --

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

12

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: -- and that is what we propose

13

today to move, move to recommend the adoption of a

14

resolution transmitting the bill to the Maui

15

Planning Commission.

16
17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. That is the motion. I need a
second.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved by Councilmember Carroll,

20

seconded by Councilmember Tavares to move this --

21

recommend this on back to the Planning Commission.

22

Discussion?

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman. Oh, excuse me.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Carroll.

25

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No discussion.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to ask a few

3

questions before you ask for the vote on this,

4

please --

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- to Planning Department.

7

Mr. Min, I understand what my colleague from

8

East Maui is requesting not only us, but the Maui

9

Planning Commission to consider. I know in earlier

10

discussions before the rural ordinance as I can

11

recall this is part of an omnibus legislation one

12

time that would have given automatic zoning to all

13

this rural lands; is that correct? And that at that

14

time the East Maui member had requested that that

15

portion be deleted or await a cultural overlay

16

ordinance because of some historical concerns with

17

sites whether it be a heiau or some other kind of

18

significant cultural site. Is that what you recall?

19

MR. MIN: That's my understanding.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, if I may --

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Please, Chair.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- because I was on the Council when we

23

were having this discussion. The Council was very

24

much into doing historic overlay and trying to

25

create a historic overlay for the entire County.
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And this was at the time we were discussing this

2

particular bill. The effort to do a -- an overlay

3

district was -- was an item in the Council Committee

4

at the time. And since that time, no overlay

5

district has been created. The item was filed. But

6

because the Hana Community Plan was part of that

7

discussion and there were many historic cultural

8

sites there, this was added into the community plan

9

and in no other plan, as I understand it, after that

10

because subsequently the issue was dropped and

11

filed.

12

So what Councilmember Carroll is trying to do

13

is say -- is essentially saying, since we have no

14

cultural overlay district, it was never created and

15

was filed by Council, the requirement to have the

16

overlay district in Hana is inappropriate and is

17

causing some problems. If at such time we do create

18

a cultural overlay district, that we can go back in

19

and put one in. But it's very similar to some other

20

things we are having to do with zoning and with the

21

community plan. We have created many items that do

22

not have any definition. And essentially what we're

23

saying, what the attempt is today at the discussion

24

is to try and delete this because there is no

25

overlay district.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So -- Thank you for that,

2

Chairman. But if I may, just so I can get a sense,

3

because I know Mr. Nishiki in discussions years ago

4

also pointed out -- and I believe it was my

5

colleague from South Maui that -- his concern was

6

that there was also other areas in the County that

7

had similar historical/cultural areas of similar

8

significance. And that if it's good for one area of

9

Maui, it should be good for other areas of Maui,

10

also, but, nonetheless, the rural bill went through

11

and except for the East Maui which was awaiting this

12

cultural overlay.

13

So in our earlier discussions we had talked

14

about that more than likely the current zoning for a

15

lot of the East Maui areas are still subject to

16

interim requirements. Is that still correct, Mr.

17

Min? Since it wasn't given the rural des- -- the

18

rural zoning awaiting cultural overlay ordinance, is

19

that how you would look at the properties at this

20

time?

21

MR. MIN: Yeah. You know, I'm really not sure.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.

23

MR. MIN: The -- well, again, some of this may have

24

occurred a number of years ago when I wasn't here,

25

but in terms of the -- the comprehensive rezoning
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that I'm familiar with, it's for the -- it was for

2

the Paia-Haiku area. I seem to recall generally

3

that in Hana there is interim-zoned land, but I

4

would have to go back to the office and confirm

5

that.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And so my question is: If

7

as now my current colleague from East Maui is

8

suggesting and recommending for us for our action

9

goes through the process and this district --

10

cultural overlay district requirement is taken out,

11

does the lands that was in limbo receive the

12

automatic omnibus designation of zoning of Rural --

13

MR. MIN: I'm looking at --

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- without further Council action?

15

MR. MIN: Yeah. I'm looking at a draft ordinance which

16

proposes the deletion of the section related to the

17

Hana Community Plan and the rural district. And

18

this is in the section called "Adoption of Zoning

19

Maps." And it would seem to me that by deleting the

20

provisions for the cultural overlay district, that

21

it would subject properties in Hana to the automatic

22

rezoning that was previously done by the Council.

23

That would be my understanding of this bill.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes, Chairman.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Just for clarification, I believe that the

2

Hana area was comprehensively zoned to -- when we

3

did the Paia, Haiku, Hana, Makawao, Kula, Molokai,

4

those areas were done comprehensive rezoning. We

5

can check.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, if I may ask --

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah.

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- because I think we need to be

9

clear on what the designation or if that

10

automatic -- not automatic, I shouldn't say --

11

that's a bad --

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The comprehensive zoning.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The comprehensive zoning that was

14

voted on by a previous Council, that auto -- that

15

action now takes affect upon these properties.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I believe the -- And, we'll -- again,

17

we'll confirm, but I believe the comprehensive

18

zoning was done, but there is an overlay district

19

requirement that is on top of that comprehensive

20

zoning.

21

MR. MIN: That's correct, Chairman.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: But the zoning itself was actually done

23

and this is an extra requirement that's added on top

24

of it. And we can have Planning Department check on

25

that, but I believe that's what the action was.
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2

Is that how you understand it, Councilmember
Carroll?

3

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That's why the exercise today.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman. I just

6

wanted to be clear that -- what actions were --

7

nonactions still impact certain parcels.

8
9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. And, again, I think this is why
Councilmember Carroll wants to remove this, because

10

although those properties were comprehensively

11

zoned, this is an added requirement. And because

12

there is no historic -- there's no cultural district

13

that was created, there's no way to satisfy this

14

requirement until such district is created. So

15

there's that added burden that was added on top of

16

that -- the zoning process that cannot be satisfied.

17

And I believe that's why the request, because of the

18

problems.

19
20

Richard.
MR. MINATOYA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I also need to

21

point out to you -- This is on my boss's orders, so

22

I get your attention.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: All right. That's fine.

24

MR. MINATOYA: -- that the cultural overlay amendment

25

allegedly was done -- I don't know for sure, but
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allegedly was done after First Reading and therefore

2

is subject to the Jim Smith lawsuit. So this would

3

serve to correct that problem, if that is a problem

4

that exists.

5
6
7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Could you explain that a little bit
clearer?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, one quick question. Are

8

you referring to a consent decree that this County

9

is bounded by?

10
11
12

MR. MINATOYA: That's correct. That lawsuit involved a
consent decree.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's why I wanted to explain it a little

13

bit clearer, because some of us were not on the

14

Council when this decree came down.

15
16

MR. MINATOYA: Basically what happens is, you know, you
need two readings of a bill.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Correct.

18

MR. MINATOYA: And if there is a -- what is deemed a

19

substantial change or amendment prior -- or after

20

First Reading, but before Second Reading, Mr. Smith

21

has brought up some allegations and some of those

22

ordinances were amended after First Reading and

23

thereby not -- did not have a two-reading -- did not

24

satisfy the two-reading requirement. This, if true,

25

would be one situation where there was a change
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after First Reading. Now, whether or not it's a

2

substantial change, we need to look at that, whether

3

it's substantial or not, but there is that potential

4

problem that it did -- there was an amendment to the

5

bill after First Reading.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, one question, please --

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- specifically about what Corp.

9

Counsel is talking about now. So Judge Raffetto is

10

going to deal with you and Mr. Smith or your office

11

and Mr. Smith. In the meantime, though, Richard,

12

regarding Mr. Carroll's request, because the

13

cultural overlay, the way I had understood it, would

14

impact everything in the whole County, would this go

15

to all three Planning Commissions, or just the Maui

16

Planning Commission?

17

MR. MINATOYA: In this case it just affects the Hana

18

Community Plan region. It appears the way it's

19

written that those lands that are less than half --

20

half acre or less in size that were zoned interim

21

unlike other lands with similar designation in the

22

rest of the island, the rest of the County, it was

23

not -- they were not rezoned automatically to Rural

24

.05 because it was pending the cultural overlay

25

district ordinance. Because that didn't happen, it
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1

appears that those lands are still -- would still

2

remain in interim. By removal of that specific

3

requirement that the cultural overlay district bill

4

ordinance be passed, it appears that it would end up

5

rezoning those lands in the Hana Community Plan

6

region to RU .05 -- 0.5.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay. Thank you very much.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: John, why are we not creating,

10
11

then, cultural overlay districts?
MR. MIN: Well, I think in previous discussions with the

12

Council my understanding was -- and this goes back I

13

think possibly two years ago -- the Land Use Chair

14

at that time indicated that it was not something

15

that he was planning to pursue. So we actually got

16

our direction from the -- from the Council. And at

17

that time the Chair of the Land Use Committee -- and

18

I believe there was discussion with the full

19

Committee. And as a result of that, we didn't

20

pursue the cultural overlay and it was not something

21

that we were asked by the Council to pursue.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, if you remember

23

when we were discussing this, Sol was on the Council

24

as well as Kalani was on the Council and this was an

25

area that we were starting to look into, creating
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1

the cultural overlay district. And we actually put

2

funding into the Cultural Commission, but in the

3

subsequent Council this was -- this topic was sort

4

of never worked on and then subsequently filed.

5

Okay. That's the history as I understand it, Wayne.

6
7

Did you want to continue your comments, or
shall I let Councilmember Tavares --

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'll allow Charmaine to continue.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Tavares, then

10
11

Councilmember Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. The discussion about the

12

cultural overlay districts, you know, as you're

13

pointing out, came up during the time I think when

14

Mr. English was Chair of the Land Use Committee.

15

And it was also, you know, parallelly historical a

16

time when we were not focused on GIS that much. It

17

was just getting started. As GIS began to develop,

18

then the thought was, and it carried over to the

19

next Council, that a cultural overlay would become

20

part of the GIS system. And the minutes of the --

21

of part of that meeting or part of the meeting where

22

this was discussed, you know, reading over it, and

23

it's basically what -- what led to, I think, the

24

filing of the cultural overlay district item, was

25

that we were assured that the cultural concerns or

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

15

LU 12/3/01

1

the concerns on identifying the cultural areas in

2

each of the districts or each of our community plan

3

areas would then be a function of our GIS system and

4

that we didn't need this redundancy. And that was

5

the reason that we filed the issue. It was not that

6

we didn't feel it was important anymore, we felt

7

that something else was going to take its place.

8

And, you know, that's my recollection of it.

9

And I think, looking over the minutes,

10

there's one part of it where on page 7 of the

11

minutes I mention that we have these cultural

12

landscape studies of Keanae and Wailua Nui area that

13

were done for the Planning Department. And my

14

question was, you know, where do these studies go

15

once they're done? And that if they -- if these

16

studies are then incorporated in the GIS system,

17

then at least they're accounted for somewhere. But

18

I think what we need to follow up with is: Has

19

these -- or have these studies or these types of

20

things been incorporated in the GIS system so that

21

now when people are looking at lands in different

22

areas, that this cultural overlay or cultural

23

concerns are raised as people look at the different

24

parcels in these areas that were covered,

25

particularly in these two studies?
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16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. And, David, have you

2

got that? Let's ask -- follow up on that question,

3

what actually is being done with it.

4

Councilmember Molina.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair, I withdraw my question I

6

had for the Corporation Counsel. What I had, I

7

have -- what I needed to know about I ended up

8

finding in my binder. Thank you.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Then basically, as it is right now, the

10

cultural overlay district is not being worked on as

11

an ordinance, so therefore the request and the

12

motion on the floor right now is to refer this to

13

the Planning Commission for them to have discussion

14

as to whether or not it should be removed or not,

15

and then it will come back to the Council for

16

further discussion. Okay.

17

And this is also in accordance with what Mr.

18

Minatoya has said was -- it got to this point and

19

there was a challenge as to whether or not it was

20

actually legal or not, even in the form it's in,

21

because it didn't have two readings. So this will

22

clarify that one way or the other anyway. And I

23

think it's a necessary action.

24
25

Councilmember Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, by going back to the
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Planning Department and I'm assuming the CRC --

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Planning Commission.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Then what will end up happening is

4

they will put it in whatever its proper form is and

5

integrate the -- the elements that Councilmember

6

Tavares is speaking about if they so choose? Is

7

that my understanding?

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. We'll be referring them for them to

9

have discussions about this as to whether or not to

10

delete it from the Hana Community Plan. Whether or

11

not it's incorporated within the GIS system, we'll

12

be asking Bill Medeiros as to whether or not they

13

are trying to incorporate this. So we'll transmit

14

that answer to you, because we were -- Richard.

15

There are two separate items, two separate things.

16

MR. MINATOYA: I think, Mr. Chair, just to clarify, the

17

public hearing would be held out in Hana by the Hana

18

Advisory Committee to the Planning Commission.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. It really is sort of a cleanup, no

20

matter how you look at it.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But, Mr. Chair, the item that's

22

before us is just strictly for the Hana, it's not

23

the cultural overlay subject throughout the entire

24

25

County of Maui?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: This is only Hana. And no other community

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

18

LU 12/3/01

1

plan is it in the community plan. So this was put

2

in there and it's sort of restricting the zoning --

3

the use of the zoning that's there. So it's one of

4

those things that you don't have anything that you

5

can clearly define because it's not there but it's a

6

requirement to satisfy. It's one of those

7

impossible situations. If such time as a cultural

8

overlay district is actually created, then it would

9

be appropriate. Or if it's incorporated within the

10

GIS system and is never created, then you

11

wouldn't -- if it's never created, you can never use

12

it anyway, that's the problem with it. And we don't

13

have it right now.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In regard, Mr. Chair, to the

15

comments made by Councilmember Tavares, if I

16

understand correctly, what could transpire, we would

17

have to create a new item that would address the

18

issue specifically within the GIS system, or is that

19

question going to be posed to the Planning

20

Department -- or the Commission?

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We'll be posing it to the -- to Bill

22

Medeiros, who is doing the GIS program, as to

23

whether or not this topic is being incorporated

24

within the GIS system. So the information that is

25

necessary as far as where the cultural sites are and
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what is being -- what is occurring with those,

2

whether they're incorporated within the system or

3

not for our overview. So it's -- if it is, we won't

4

be duplicating. If it is not, then we need to make

5

sure that they are doing something with it. Then

6

we'll report back to you.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Two things that concern me.

10

One is the statement by Mr. Minatoya and he gives us

11

a general statement in regards to what Mr. Smith had

12

challenged in court and what ordinances now are

13

hereby in question. And then he says, a

14

determination has yet to be made whether this was

15

one that was substantive or not. I don't want to be

16

put in the situation where a clear decision is not

17

forthcoming to this Committee and just a general

18

statement saying that this may be one of the

19

ordinances because it was passed on second and

20

final. I think, you know, to lead us by the tail

21

and then tell us if there is something I think is

22

more forthcoming and more honest. But for this

23

general statement to be made, Mr. Minatoya, is not

24

acceptable. One.

25

Number two, the reason for the cultural
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1

overlay was because of many people that were

2

developing were not cognizant of perhaps cultural

3

resources that needed to be addressed whether

4

preserved, saved. And this was the reason, because

5

Hana, I think, as mentioned by former Councilmember

6

English, had many instances where people or owners

7

that just wanted to develop were developing without

8

any concern for many of the cultural concerns that

9

people within that community had. And I'm not

10

saying that newcomers didn't care, but, you know,

11

people that were not sensitive, all they were

12

worried about was developing their property.

13

Then the story goes on to say that GIS is

14

going to cover this or this is what we have been

15

made to believe is going to occur. I guess the

16

question is: Is it going to occur or is it not

17

going to occur? And who is in charge of this? So

18

we don't play any head games or make-believe or lead

19

the community into thinking that this Council cares

20

so much that it's going to happen as our policy. So

21

who is going to answer that question or do we need

22

to get it from someone within this Administration?

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Richard, you want to answer? Okay. I'm

24

going to let Richard answer the first part of your

25

question. And for the second part, Councilmember
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Nishiki, Bill Medeiros is working on -- the GIS

2

person, he's the point person for the Administration

3

on this, and I will ask him -- we will be sending a

4

communication to him to find out what is happening

5

with it because I, too, would like to know what's

6

happening with it.

7
8
9

Okay. Richard.
MR. MINATOYA: Okay. Regarding the first question, well,
let me let go off your tail and grab you by the

10

scruff of your neck and tell you in looking at the

11

bill, it does appear to be substantial. Okay. Now,

12

whether or not it occurred after First Reading or

13

not, I don't know, because it was just brought to my

14

attention. But if it, indeed, was done after First

15

Reading, I would say that it was substantial.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, then I would ask Mr.

17

Minatoya to send us that opinion down so that what

18

he is representing today is a fact and not just

19

speaking from, you know --

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We can get an official opinion.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- some opinion given.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We can get an official opinion.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I don't think we have received any

24

ordinances or have been told by this Corporation

25

Counsel that this ordinance or this ordinance is not
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1

sound because of Jim Smith's challenge. So if you

2

want to do that, then present it to us in a written

3

manner and give us the reason why you think it's

4

substantive. But --

5

MR. MINATOYA: I will.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- for you to say that this Jim

7

Smith ruling affected this without any written

8

opinion to me is not enough for me to accept.

9

MR. MINATOYA: I will upon receiving your written request.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further discussion?

12
13

Councilmember Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Can we get some

14

clarification for everybody, since we're talking

15

about ordinances and first and second reading, is

16

the ordinance you're referring to the ordinance that

17

is the Hana Community Plan?

18
19
20
21

MR. MINATOYA: No. It's that bill that's referred to,
Ordinance No. 2583, 1996.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's in your binder. It's about halfway
through just following the May 22nd transmittal.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. That's the one that's in

23

the memo that's titled "Deleting Reference to the

24

Cultural Overlay District and Ordinance 2583"?

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's a Bill for an Ordinance Amending
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Ordinance No. 2583, Bill No. 42, Draft 2.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. And what is Bill 2583?

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's what I'm trying to find out

5

here.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Richard.

7

MR. MINATOYA: 2583 established the rural zoning

8
9

districts.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Rural zoning.

10

MR. MINATOYA: In Title 19.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So the only thing that's

12

happening, then, is deleting the reference in that

13

rural zoning that excluded or exempted Hana, Hana

14

district?

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: What is happening is we're --

16

MR. MINATOYA: That's right.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's right.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah. We're deleting the reference of the

19

cultural overlay district requirement for Hana.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So is the question that the whole

21

rural zoning ordinance is in jeopardy here because

22

of what happened between first and second reading?

23
24
25

MR. MINATOYA: I would say not. I would say only it's
limited to that amendment -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: To that amendment only.
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MR. MINATOYA: -- which is the cultural overlay district.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

3

MR. MINATOYA: And I guess there was some reference to

4

Kuleana lands, but I guess because of the size it

5

would be the same thing.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. Okay. So after -- if we

7

pass this out and the Planning Commission approves

8

or recommends back to us to delete that reference,

9

then the issue is a moot one?

10

MR. MINATOYA: That's correct.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

12

MR. MINATOYA: Upon passage of this current bill on two

13

readings.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. Okay. Thank you.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So, again, yeah, this would be trying to

16
17
18
19

clarify that and clean it up a lot.
Any further discussion? Councilmember
Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes. I would like to apologize to

20

the other Commissioners for not getting into more

21

detail. Since I was involved in this from its

22

conception, I just assumed that everybody was up to

23

speed on it, and that was a mistake on my part. I

24

think this is the appropriate action that we're

25

taking, that's why I proposed it. And I think it is
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doubly appropriate to send it back to the Planning

2

Commission, which will go back to the Hana Advisory

3

Council to the Planning Commission before it comes

4

back to us. And I would hope that everyone would

5

support this. Thank you.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further discussion?

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And then Councilmember Kane.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Specifically what problems are

12

people having in Hana? I mean, you -- you make

13

general statements, but no specific concerns.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Carroll.

15

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Because of this overlay, when you

16

go -- Let's see. What would be a good example? The

17

last one was -- Oh, I can't think of his name. He

18

wanted to do -- acquire some land to further -- from

19

the Catholic church in Hana to expand his flower

20

growing business. I can't think of the man's name

21

for the life of me. And because of this holding up,

22

it lengthened -- it made the process much more

23

lengthy because it was in limbo, so to speak, as

24

it -- the situation we're in now. And it just made

25

more -- I would -- John could probably give you a
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better explanation.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good.

3

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: But it made it more difficult for

4
5

anybody to proceed.
MR. MIN: Yeah. The -- With the current provisions

6

applicable to Hana where you have interim zoned

7

land, under the subdivision ordinance, those

8

properties cannot be subdivided.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. MIN: So when the -- when this exception was created

11

for Hana, in effect it left the lands in -- subject

12

to County interim zoning and not subject to any

13

subdivision, future subdivision. In order for the

14

properties to be subdivided, they would have to come

15

in and apply for a change in zoning, that would have

16

to be done on an individual basis. So basically the

17

issue that Bob is talking about, that example, is a

18

situation where there may have been some interest to

19

acquire some property, but it would have required

20

the subdivision of that parcel and under the current

21

zoning, subdivision is not permitted because the

22

lands are County interim zoned.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Subdivisions are permitted if they

24

come in and get zoning. It's not an all-out you

25

can't subdivide.
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MR. MIN: That's correct.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: They have to come and get zoning.

3

MR. MIN: That's correct. And I did say that. Again, it

4

would be up to the individual landowner, property

5

owner, to apply for that change in zoning.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Because they don't have

7

comprehensive zoning now. But to eliminate the

8

cultural overlay concern is holding someone back.

9

And how many properties are being affected by this?

10
11
12

MR. MIN: According to our information, it's about 269
parcels.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And where are we in addressing

13

some of the cultural concerns that were concerns

14

raised about these parcels in Hana?

15

MR. MIN: Okay. In terms of -- in terms of the GIS, I'm

16

not sure where we are on that. In terms of the

17

review of individual applications, most of our

18

applications that come in for public hearing type of

19

review will go to State Historic Preservation Office

20

for review and comment. So those types of

21

applications do get reviewed by the State Historic

22

Office. I believe also that grading permit

23

applications also go to the State Historic

24

Preservation Office for review.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, what concerns me, Mr.
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Chairman, is -- and I don't know who now sits in our

2

County -- I know it was Elizabeth Anderson that was

3

our cultural so-called expert, John, that may look

4

at some of these areas. Who now sits within the

5

Planning Department or someone in Administration

6

that we can refer to as the guru of cultural

7

concerns should it be raised?

8
9

MR. MIN: Yeah. Currently we don't have any staff
specialist of that nature.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And this is a concern for me, Mr.

11

Chairman, that despite that it goes to the State, I

12

think even other Council members have had some

13

concerns that they really don't get a good look on

14

perhaps where the sensitive cultural concerns are,

15

thereby, I don't know, making me feel a bit

16

uncomfortable about where we are at in regards to

17

addressing the concerns here in Maui County.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I can appreciate that, Councilmember

19

Nishiki. And that's why, when we had discussed

20

this -- actually, Sol brought it up when we were

21

in -- before Kalani came on board, and we were

22

discussing culture and working in this area.

23

However, the topic that we have on discussion right

24

now is to take this particular thing, send it to

25

Planning Commission for review through the -- also
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going out to Hana and having public review and then

2

coming back to us for discussion.

3

The full discussion on cultural sites and

4

what we're doing with them is not what we're

5

discussing this morning. The concern is there.

6

It's a very valid concern, but, again, that's not

7

what the purpose of what we're doing tonight --

8

today is. It's removing something that we don't

9

have as an ordinance.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We don't have the overlay district.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I -- and I guess my concern is

13

this: You were right in saying we don't have

14

anything, but at the same time I don't think we're

15

even pointing our noses right now into moving

16

quickly into addressing this so that should someone

17

decide that he, she or they would like to purchase

18

this particular parcel, at least they would be made

19

aware of that, hey, you know, there's some cultural

20

concerns here and you may not be able to develop

21

this in its entirety --

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And the same would be true --

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- thereby making it --

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- throughout the County, Council member.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Make it up front to the
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developer and whomever that, hey, this is a rule and

2

this is what you're going to play by. But I think

3

that we're going to constantly run into problems

4

unless we get serious about this area. And to

5

merely nullify this cultural overlay ordinance that

6

I felt the Council had -- when Kahoohalahala and Mr.

7

English were sitting here, had some concerns because

8

of the abuse being done by landowners or potential

9

buyers is one that still, I think, members of this

10

community would appreciate if we put some energy

11

into addressing these. I'm done.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Kane.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And my

14

colleague from South Maui asked the question

15

regarding the discrepancy regarding the creation of

16

inconvenience, hardship and confusion with this.

17

And I was just curious if there was any type of

18

documentation as to these created hardships? And I

19

know this is from Mr. Carroll, but I don't know if

20

the -- Planning Department had applicants come in

21

and felt that this cultural overlay for the Hana

22

area did create the problems in that area and that

23

you folks have documentation of those problems.

24
25

MR. MIN: Yeah. I'm only personally aware of one
situation. And I haven't talked to my staff to see
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if we've gotten other queries from other Hana

2

landowners. So just from personal experience, I can

3

only relate one example.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Because I can understand Mr.

5

Nishiki's point. I think back in '97 I think it was

6

Mr. Nishiki who was also asking why only Hana, why

7

not Hana -- I mean, why not Lahaina, why not other

8

places, the whole County? And so the direction that

9

we're taking today seems to go opposite from the

10

concern, and that's why I can understand and

11

appreciate why Mr. Nishiki is bringing up this issue

12

and has a concern on it.

13

My other question is kind of going back to

14

Mr. Hokama's question because what we have on the

15

floor today is to delete this portion or amend the

16

ordinance by deleting this reference to the cultural

17

overlay --

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Actually, what we have is to send this to

19

Planning Commission. So we'll be asking Planning

20

Commission to review this, take it out for public

21

hearing, then send it back to us. That's what the

22

motion is.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Well, I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, I

24

misunderstood what the motion was. I thought it was

25

to recommend the passage of the proposed bill with
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1
2
3

that amendment.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. We're recommending that this be
referred to Planning Commission --

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- so that they can discuss it, and then

6
7

we can come back after having review.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you for that. Thank

8

you. And so the adoption of the resolution -- Do we

9

have the reso.? Because I don't see the resolution

10

in our binder. Do we have a resolution? We're

11

referencing a resolution. Do we have one? I mean,

12

if that was the intent of this Committee to do that

13

today, I would assume that we would have had that

14

resolution before us for consideration.

15

MR. RAATZ: Mr. Chair, just to clarify, there is no

16

resolution in written form pending before the

17

Committee. There's essentially a standard form type

18

of resolution for these type of referrals to the

19

Maui Planning Commission. We just received the

20

written opinion from Corporation Counsel that a

21

resolution would be needed to transmit this bill to

22

the Maui Planning Commission before the Council

23

could consider its enactment. So Councilmember Kane

24

is correct, there is no written resolution before

25

the body, but, again, generally these types of
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2

resolutions follow the standard format.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you for that clarification.

3

And, Mr. Chair, I'm just referencing the status of

4

the agenda.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Correct.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's talking about -- and then we

7

look at the bracketed item of deleting. So, again,

8

just for clarification, this vote today is just

9

simply a resolution going to --

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Planning Commission to review.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- the Planning Commission, which

12

will go out to Hana -- not them, but the Cultural

13

Resource Commission or -- I'm sorry.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: To hearing.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- Hana Advisory.

16

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Hana Advisory Council.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. So all that will occur

18

and then it will come back to us?

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you very much.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In the interim, between the time

23

that this is transmitted and the time it actually

24

comes back, let's say, for consideration to the

25

Council, what will happen to the specific wording or
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1

the impacts on what we're trying to deal with right

2

now?

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Everything is the same until we change it.

4

So it has to go -- the process of changing it is to

5

send it to Planning Commission, have them review it,

6

and when it comes back to us, if we change it at

7

that point, then it would become effective. Until

8

that time, what is currently there still is there.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So that the actual deletion, then,

10

of this particular reference will not really be the

11

action that we're taking today?

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We're not deleting anything.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We're referring this to Planning

15
16

Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I -- And one other question

17

that I have, Mr. Chair, I know that at Historic

18

Hawaii Conference and also because I have been

19

dealing on other issues with the Cultural Resources

20

Commission, the Planning Department, I believe that

21

Clayton Yoshida was supposedly the individual that

22

was serving in the capacity in which Mr. Nishiki

23

referenced as the cultural specialist because we are

24

a certified local government and it's my

25

understanding that we're required by law to have
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1

that individual be a consultant on anything of any

2

archaeological nature or cultural nature. So could

3

he please clarify for us, because he just stated

4

that there was no one.

5

MR. MIN: Yeah. You're correct in that, you know, Clayton

6

is the designated liaison for the Cultural Resources

7

Commission with the State Historic Preservation

8

Office. My response to Councilman Nishiki was more

9

in terms of a staff person. For example, he

10

referred to Elizabeth Anderson and Elizabeth did a

11

lot of the staff work to support the Cultural

12

Resources Commission. Clayton does -- is involved

13

in that, but not to the extent that Elizabeth was.

14

And that was really the context of my response, you

15

know, unlike the past, we don't have a staff person

16

who does a lot of work to support the work of the

17

Cultural Resources Commission, cultural resources

18

management, and so forth. That was really my

19

response. But you are correct, Mr. Yoshida is our

20

liaison between the Cultural Resources Commission

21

and the State Historic Preservation Office.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So if I may, Mr. Chair,

23

what you're explaining to me, then, is for purposes

24

of the law, he would be the individual to satisfy

25

that requirement even though he may not have that as
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2

his specific duty? Is that correct?
MR. MIN: That is correct. You know, in Mr. Yoshida's

3

current capacity as a Deputy Planning Director, he

4

has a broader set of responsibilities. But he does

5

have a master's degree in American studies and he

6

does have the credentials. He's worked on the

7

nomination of sites to the State and National

8

Register and he has a lot of those requisite

9

credentials. And he's also the key Department

10

representative at the meetings of the Cultural

11

Resources Commission.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I thank you for that

13

clarification. I just want to make sure that we're

14

in compliance with the requirements so that the

15

issues that Mr. Nishiki and Ms. Tavares and other

16

Council members have referred to -- so that is taken

17

care of. Because it's really important particularly

18

because we don't have the cultural overlay and we

19

don't have a qualified -- or let's say a full-time

20

qualified specialist working in that area, it's

21

really important that we do protect those cultural

22

sites. So I just want to make certain that we do

23

move towards that direction of acquiring that kind

24

of expertise.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, let me point out, Hana is the only
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1

one that has this reference in the community plan.

2

The rest of the County, all the different cultural

3

sites, do deal with those. So the mechanism to do

4

that is still there, Cultural Resources Commission

5

being one of the mechanisms of oversight. And

6

the -- so we're not taking away something that we

7

already are doing in other areas, it's just Hana

8

specific this was put into the community plan and

9

because the overlay district was never created, it's

10

in the plan, but you can't do anything with it

11

because it doesn't exist. Okay. So it was never

12

something that was there that we're deleting. It

13

was something that was a vision that never was

14

brought to fruition. Okay.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Further discussion? Councilmember

17

Nishiki.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, thank you. So when I look

19

at cover letter October 15th, 2001 to Alan Arakawa

20

from Mr. Minatoya, "Subject: Deleting Reference to

21

Cultural Overlay Districts in Ordinance 2583," and I

22

look at the ordinance itself and this is draft bill

23

for an ordinance amending Ordinance 2583, Bill No.

24

42, Draft 2, establishing rural zoning districts in

25

Title 19, Maui County Code, starts with Section 1
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1

and then goes on to Section 5, what is being

2

replaced and added being that --

3
4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: If you look in that section, the first
paragraph --

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Go ahead.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The first paragraph of Section 5, about

7

halfway down, there is a bracket.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. From the bracketed area to the end

10

of the paragraph, that is what is being taken out.

11

That's what is being proposed for discussion to the

12

Planning Commission to take out.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So that bracketed area all the way

14

to says "and zoned interim pursuant to 92 Maui

15

County Code shall hereby be zoned RU 0.5," right?

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: That bracketed information.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So ultimately the question that

18

was being asked in regards to what is being referred

19

to the Hana Planning Commission is an ordinance that

20

is -- that the Council is asking to be deleted --

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Correct.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- is really the truth.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's why I pointed out to you --

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's what we're saying we wanted

25

deleted.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's what I pointed out, yes.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, this is for discussion in the

4

Planning Commission and then further on it will come

5

back to us. So we're making a referral.

6

Okay. Any other discussion?

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Wayne.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm going to be voting no on this.

10

You know, when we heard from the representative

11

saying that there has been a great much concern, I

12

believe that that to be, you know, quite a bit of

13

concern. Then when I hear from John Min in

14

regards -- when the question asked of John Min is

15

how many and -- and describe those instances, I

16

don't know when John said he had one that he knows

17

of and whether he was specific about what it was

18

that was the concern. And then I asked a member of

19

the Planning Department how many parcels there are

20

in this specific area, he said somewhere in the area

21

of 246, I think, 246 was what he mentioned. One is

22

hardly a big amount that this ordinance is being

23

asked now to be raised.

24
25

To me, cultural concerns are important and I
just believe that we should be moving in the
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1

direction of addressing these concerns and looking

2

at and finding out whether GIS is really moving

3

quickly. That kind of statistic is not one to make

4

me move in the direction that we're headed for. So

5

I'm going to be voting against it.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Let me remind you, also, that the referral

7

to Jim Smith as to whether or not this was actually

8

done in the correct way, referring it to Planning

9

Commission would allow it to be done the correct way

10

with having two readings. So that's also a concern.

11

Okay. Councilmember Johnson.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, Mr. Chair, I -- I have

13

an agreement, you know, with Mr. Nishiki in the

14

respect that it seems that we're sending -- by just

15

sending back this transmittal as a deletion of this

16

particular item, I don't really know if that's what

17

the intent is. And because we don't have a

18

resolution actually before us to consider, my -- my

19

biggest fear is that they may misinterpret what

20

we're really charging them with the responsibility

21

of doing, which is to look at it in the context that

22

it may not be in compliance, but that we would

23

really like to see them come forward with either

24

some kind of supportive ordinance or some other

25

means of addressing the issues and still protecting
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1

the assets that we have in Hana that are of cultural

2

significance. So I have a conflicted area where I

3

really don't believe that it sends a good message

4

going back to the Planning Department without having

5

a very clear directive that these are the reasons

6

why we're sending it back, why we're requesting you

7

to back it off temporarily, but immediately put it

8

back in its proper form, something to that effect.

9

And without that in front of me, I -- I really --

10

I'm not going to be very supportive of this

11

particular measure.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, let me remind you, there is no

13

cultural overlay district at all. It doesn't exist.

14

So therefore, you know, if this stays exactly where

15

it is, there is still no motion to create a cultural

16

overlay district. So the action that -- what your

17

explanation is won't be working toward a positive

18

anyway in this area. It's taking something that

19

doesn't exist, just acknowledging the fact it

20

doesn't exist, and saying, well, this is going to be

21

something that is going to be an extra burden on

22

this particular community where no other community

23

plan within the County -- and, again, it doesn't

24

exist. So it's not -- it's not correcting a

25

direction.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I understand what you're saying,

2

Mr. Chair, but it doesn't -- the action that this

3

body takes doesn't preclude sending a message along

4

with the resolution or as a part of the resolution

5

to say, look, this is something that we would like

6

to see you undertake and come back in a fuller form

7

so that it is incorporated into this particular

8

district. You know, if one is to be created, if

9

you're going to create a cultural overlay district,

10

then wouldn't it be appropriate if it's specifically

11

for Hana to send back a message stating that it is

12

incomplete the way it is, no such district exists,

13

therefore would you send it back to the Hana

14

community with the intention of crafting that type

15

of thing so it can come back in the proper form.

16

You're saying that's not possible?

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No. I'm saying the process is to create

18

an overlay district for the entire County. It

19

wouldn't be one particular community. And that was

20

before the Council -- prior to creating a cultural

21

overlay district. And that attempt that was started

22

over four years ago was filed by the Council. So

23

right now there is nothing before the Council to

24

create a cultural overlay district. Okay. So if

25

we're going to create an overlay district, it should
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not just be for one community, it should be for the

2

entire community as a County so an overlay district

3

ordinance is created. But that was -- that was what

4

was before the Council before and that was filed.

5

And we're going to look at the justification

6

Councilwoman Tavares has suggested and find out

7

where -- what exactly is happening. If we're going

8

to be part of the GIS system, is it becoming part of

9

the GIS system without the actual creation of a

10

cultural overlay district? So that's the direction

11

I'm going to be looking at, is what the Planning

12

Department -- or what the GIS group is doing with

13

the topic of cultural overlays.

14
15

Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Then isn't what we're doing

16

premature? If the intent is to revisit the issue of

17

cultural overlay districts and the intent is to say

18

whether or not that's to be supported, why remove it

19

from one area when we're going to be coming back

20

later on and potentially adding it in, incorporating

21

it, even in this area? I just -- I don't follow the

22

logic in that.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Again, in the Committee there is no topic

24

to -- or an attempt to try to create a cultural

25

overlay district, so --
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I understand that, Mr. Chair.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But what I'm saying is, wouldn't

4

it be more appropriate to create an item within our

5

processes to see whether or not we even want to do

6

this? If we're not going to go down cultural

7

overlay district route at all, then, fine, then take

8

this reference out, but --

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's -- At this point we filed the

10

attempt to do a cultural overlay district. The

11

Council filed that item. So therefore the attempt

12

to do an overlay district right now -- it is not

13

within the Council agenda. So, you know, because

14

this was referred to and this was put in because we

15

were looking at doing an overlay district, it was

16

premature in that the overlay district was never

17

created nor is it an item on the Council agenda now.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Similar to our open space district

19

or open space category.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: But the open space is still active. It

21

wasn't filed. This cultural overlay district was

22

actually filed.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I'll still be voting no.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I think we're getting

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

LU 12/3/01

45

1

confused in a little semantics here. It's not that

2

we're not interested in cultural overlay districts.

3

What was filed was an ordinance to create a cultural

4

overlay district. So the cultural overlay district,

5

as I understand it, still is an alive topic, but

6

the -- at the time that we were looking at filing

7

the item was we were assured that the GIS would be

8

able to identify those districts. So the choice was

9

do we do it by ordinance or do we do it through GIS?

10

And at that time the decision was to allow it to be

11

done through GIS. So the cultural overlay districts

12

would still exist.

13

I think maybe one of the things that's

14

bothersome in this is that it's only one district

15

and it's the Hana district. And if we can go back a

16

little bit in history, I think it was -- we can

17

attribute this to the overenthusiasm of the member

18

who introduced this particular issue into the rural

19

bill. And Mr. English, being the representative

20

from Hana, was also on the Cultural Resources

21

Commission prior, who was very hot and heavy into

22

this topic of cultural overlay districts wanted to

23

assure that Hana was going to be in there, so he put

24

this -- he put this in, into the ordinance. And as

25

it turns out, there is no ordinance, so, you know,
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it's kind of like he -- yeah, he had a vision for

2

what it was going to be, but since then that vision

3

has changed and it's gone from ordinance to GIS.

4

So it -- you know, if we want to start

5

everybody on a level playing field, you know, I

6

would support taking Hana out of this so that it's

7

not just sticking out there by itself. Start with a

8

playing field either include everybody right now, or

9

take Hana out so everybody is the same, all the

10

districts are the same. So I'll be supporting the

11

resolution.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Carroll.

13

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. Again, Member Tavares

14

has said eloquently what I have been trying to

15

impart to the Council. Put Hana back on a level

16

playing field. We're talking about -- I mean, we

17

have discussed this at length over here today. Send

18

this back, please, I would urge you to approve this

19

resolution. I cannot see anybody finding any harm

20

in sending this back to ultimately the Hana Advisory

21

Council, to the Planning Commission and having the

22

report come back do us.

23

Now, this -- voting against this is saying,

24

well, I don't want to listen to you people. I would

25

urge all the Council members, please, do this. When
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it comes back, all of this discussion will be

2

appropriate at that time. Thank you.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I will be

5

supporting it and it's with reservation, although

6

that doesn't go on the record. And the reason it's

7

for res- -- with reservations is because this is a

8

classic example of legislation being done -- Because

9

if you keep in mind this was put into place -- this

10

Ordinance No. 2583 was put in place before there was

11

even an ordinance out there for the rural. And so

12

keep in mind that it was supported and was passed by

13

a previous body supporting a cart before the horse

14

mentality. Now to use that same argument the

15

opposite way to me doesn't make sense. Oh, we

16

should file it or we should delete this because

17

there's no ordinance created. Well, then that's

18

kind of like talking out of two sides of your mouth

19

when you say it that way. Because in the first

20

place it shouldn't have been done unless it was done

21

like Mr. Nishiki was asking for back in 1997. If

22

it's going to be done, do it for the whole County,

23

not just for Hana.

24
25

However, I think in light of what Mr. Carroll
just said, all we're voting on today -- And that's
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why I asked for clarification earlier, because right

2

now I would vote against this deletion if that were

3

the question on the floor. But that's not on the

4

floor. What's on the floor is sending it back to a

5

community and allow them to make a comment on it.

6

And if it's really an -- I'm going to reference back

7

to Mr. Carroll's memo, the inconveniences, the hard

8

ships and the confusions that are being created, I

9

think that will be flushed out at the time it goes

10

to the community and they can respond to those

11

things. And if, in fact, that is the case, then we

12

can act appropriately here. So for that reason I

13

will be -- I will be supporting the resolution

14

moving forward.

15
16
17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you.
Councilmember Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In my view this is not about my

18

confidence in the ability of -- the ability of Hana

19

to govern or not to govern or tell us what they do

20

or what they don't want. I express very strongly

21

that when I approve something, I would like to have

22

it in front of me. I would like to be able to see

23

what the resolution says, what is included in the

24

framework of what we're sending back. Just as you

25

have heard confusion here on the floor about what
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we're really discussing, I don't want to leave that

2

up to people and have them wonder what we were

3

thinking at the time. So I -- I just prefer to have

4

something at least in a form that I can look at it

5

and know that that's what our intent is. I don't

6

think that the resolution which is not before us --

7

I have no idea what that's going to say, it may or

8

may not reflect, and that's why I'm going to be

9

voting no. And not because of the fact that I don't

10

trust the people of Hana. This is nothing to do

11

with it. It's about wanting to know what I'm

12

sending forward and so that I'm comfortable with

13

that in my own mind.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Further discussion? If -- We have a

15

motion on the floor at this point and I guess, you

16

know, if you really want to, we can actually draft

17

the resolution to full format and do it. The basic

18

ordinance that we were looking at and sending back

19

for comment basically we're asking the Planning

20

Commission to look at it and review it and take it

21

out there and then come back to us. So we're not

22

actually changing anything at this point in what the

23

law actually is. And if, you know, you really want

24

this as a resolution fully done, we could do that

25

prior to asking for a vote. It just seemed that if
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we were going to just send it back to Planning

2

Commission to have them review it and in retrospect

3

to how it affects everybody else in the County and

4

how it's not in all the other community plans for

5

discussion, it didn't seem really necessary to have

6

it finally worded. But if that's your concern, we

7

can do it that way as well. But I leave it up to

8

this body.
Councilmember Molina.

9
10
11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, Mr. Chair. Was this ever
reviewed by a Planning Commission in the past?

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, it was.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And the outcome was?

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The outcome was the ordinance you have

15

today. And, again, we do have some question as to

16

whether or not the way it was done was proper.

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So there's questions with regards
to the procedures?

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Questions with regards to procedures. So

20

even if we wanted to enforce it right now, if

21

somebody were to challenge this, it's questionable

22

as to whether or not it's enforceable the way it is.

23

So that's part of the court challenge that Mr.

24

Minatoya was talking about, you know, Mr. Smith

25

filed.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Saying that this was one of the examples

3

of us not doing it correctly. And by sending this

4

back to Committee or to the Planning Commission,

5

we're trying to correct some of that as well.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So it serves a multiple purpose.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman, you know, I would --

11

I would like to act on this today. And if we could

12

move it to the end of the calendar for today and

13

have Mr. Raatz bring up what that standard

14

resolution is so that we've got something that we

15

all can look at and amend if we want to instead of

16

deferring this and bringing it up at the next

17

meeting. Maybe he has enough -- he would have

18

enough time to do that. I see him nodding, so if

19

that's possible, I think that would be helpful to

20

all of us.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Then Councilmember Nishiki.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I just want to -- you to

23

tell me if what you represented prior to Charmaine

24

speaking is actually what occurred. Was this

25

Ordinance 2583 a specific ordinance that Mr. Smith
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referenced in his court with us?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: This is what Mr. Minatoya has informed me,

3

that the Department wanted us to keep that in mind

4

when we're having this discussion.

5
6
7
8
9
10
11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, but is this -- is this an
ordinance that -CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's what Mr. Minatoya asked me to keep
in mind.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So he will -- he can look it up. Richard,
perhaps you can explain specifically.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just point of information, Mr. Chair.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: This particular ordinance was the

15

amendment that was made after First Reading and Mr.

16

Minatoya said this earlier.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And because of that, it only got one

19

reading. It only came up at Second Reading for the

20

vote. And because of that, because ordinance by

21

Charter is supposed to have two readings, that's

22

what the consent decree is talking about. That's

23

what the court is about, that this was improperly

24

passed without two readings. So just for some

25

clarity, Wayne.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I -- I think that in the

2

past Council has made amendments to an ordinance

3

after being told after First Reading that these

4

amendments were not substantive, therefore it is

5

okay for us to do it. And I spent 20 years

6

listening to different Corporation Counsels telling

7

us this and thereby believing that it was okay. Now

8

for someone to come in and tell me today -- And this

9

is what you represented, Alan, not Mr. Minatoya --

10

that this was one that was specifically mentioned in

11

Mr. Smith's battle with the County, that part I

12

asked just was it or was it not? Is it on the

13

record in the courts that 2583 passed on Second and

14

Final with the amendment was, indeed, a concern by

15

the court?

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If I can get some clarification on

18

that, I would appreciate it.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Did Mr. Smith and did the

21

appellate say this? Thank you.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki, all I know is what

23

Mr. Minatoya asked me to consider. And I am

24

representing what I understood Mr. Minatoya asked me

25

to have the Council consider.
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Okay. Richard.

2

MR. MINATOYA: Okay. I'm referring to Mr. Smith's Second

3

Amended Complaint filed in the Second Circuit Court

4

October 27, 1997. Paragraph 2 states in part, it

5

says, Item 3 under Paragraph 2, "The defendants

6

stated purpose for closing is April 8th, 1997

7

meeting is unlawful and in violation of HRS 92.5.

8

And to announce to the public that it will close all

9

meetings to consult instead of deliberating on an

10

issue that to enact in an open meeting on this

11

deliberation without disclosing the substance of its

12

action is unlawful and in violation of open meeting

13

provisions of the Sunshine Law. The defendants

14

policy of proactively" -- the defendants which

15

include former Councilmember Kahoohalahala says

16

that -- Let's see. "The defendants policy of

17

proactively conducting closed private meetings at

18

which agenda items pending before Boards and

19

Commissions are discussed without public notice in

20

compliance with open meeting provisions of the

21

Sunshine Law is unlawful. And that the closed

22

private meeting held at the June 3rd, 1997 meeting

23

of the Land Use Committee of the Maui County Council

24

presided over by Sol Kahoohalahala occurred without

25

public notice or compliance with the permanent
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injunction open meeting provisions of the Sunshine

2

Law and that such action is unlawful."

3

And I have a copy of that agenda which

4

includes LU-32 establishing rural and agricultural

5

zoning districts. "That Defendant Kahoohalahala's

6

practice of introduction for consideration items

7

unidentified and not listed on the agenda of the

8

June 3rd, '97 meeting at its Committee's June 3rd,

9

1997 meeting and consideration and action on said

10

items is unlawful and with particular -- and with

11

particularity consideration and action upon

12

Committee Report No. 95-226, the public notice bill,

13

is unlawful. That actions by the Maui Planning

14

Commission and the Maui County Council on matters

15

stemming from the illegalities at issue be declared

16

invalid. Specifically the adoption of undisclosed

17

motion by the Planning Commission and adoption of

18

Committee Report 97-126.

19

"7. Further, that when the Council adopted

20

Committee Report No. 97-126 it unlawfully adopted as

21

part of that report Bill No. 42, Draft 2 passed on

22

Second and Final Reading as -- and designated as

23

Ordinance No. 2583. And that Defendant Mayor

24

validating by signing into law this ordinance

25

violated the permanent injunction and letter and
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intent of the Sunshine Law.
"8. That defendants must conform its conduct

2
3

to comply with permanent injunctions, the Sunshine

4

Law, and the Maui County Charter." Then he goes on

5

to ask for a declaratory order, et cetera, et

6

cetera.

7
8
9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Is that adequate for you, Councilmember
Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So this means that any law that we

10

passed without addressing what the amendments are

11

are now all null and void? Because this was one

12

that was so stated.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Minatoya. Richard.

14

MR. MINATOYA: That's an allegation contained in Mr.

15

Smith's complaint. That's not to say that any

16

amendments made in an open meeting open to the

17

public are not valid. We're not saying that. The

18

allegation is that the meetings were not open, they

19

were done in closed session and then validated in an

20

open meeting.

21
22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So, Mr. Nishiki, specific to this
particular item as read by Richard, referring --

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What does a closed session mean?

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Executive session.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Executive session.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Does that answer the question?

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I don't know if that

4
5
6
7
8

9
10

occurred or not, but I am curious.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, call for the question. We
have a motion on the floor.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We have a request to defer this to the end
of the agenda at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You have to deal with the motion on
the floor.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: There's a motion on the floor.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right. So I'm going to be dealing with

13

that. So what I would ask is I would ask at this

14

point -- Hold on two seconds. Let me have a

15

30-second recess.

16

(Gavel.)

RECESS: 2:46 p.m.

17

RECONVENE: 2:47 p.m.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I'm going to reconvene the meeting.

19

(Gavel.) We're going to take a recess until --

20

subject to the call of the Chair. Recess.

21

(Gavel.)

RECESS: 2:48 p.m.

22

RECONVENE: 3:23 p.m.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: (Gavel.) Has everybody had a chance to

24

look over briefly the reso. and form? Any

25

discussion? Councilmember Nishiki.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I -- I was running with a

2

bit of cloudiness, but now I can remember

3

specifically why this language was put into the

4

ordinance. And I don't think Mr. Min was present

5

because he was working for a private company with

6

Mr. Chris. And Mr. Minatoya was not here, because I

7

think he was on Kauai. But those of us that vividly

8

sat on the Council when Kalani had that marathon

9

meeting in Hana can remember him speaking about the

10

concern. And this meeting was attended -- and I

11

don't know if Mr. Carroll was there -- by about 200

12

members of the Hana community in which they were up

13

in arms because of much of the land was being bought

14

and sold and a lot of the family heiau and all the

15

different areas that -- and, you know, Hana is rich

16

in cultural resources and these people are family

17

living there and haven't left. And this is the

18

reason why it was specifically put in this

19

ordinance, Mr. Chairman.

20

And so, you know, we talk about -- level

21

playing fields is a term that was used today. I

22

don't think that when we go to Lanai, when we go to

23

Molokai, when we go to Hana, you know, places that

24

are basically rural in character, they don't want to

25

be treated like many of our -- us that live in urban
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1

areas, the so-called urbanites that are certain

2

kinds of things. And thereby they don't complain

3

because, you know, they may not have the best road

4

system or whatever.

5

This is specifically about Hana. And I want

6

to read from the Hana Community Plan in what they

7

talk about when they talk about Cultural Resources.

8

"The goal is identification, preservation,

9

protection, and where appropriate restoration of

10

significant cultural resources and practices that

11

provide a sense of history and identity for the Hana

12

region." Hana wants some identity. They don't want

13

to become Middle Road America. "Objectives and

14

Policies. Identify, preserve and protect

15

historically, archaeologically and culturally

16

significant area, sites and features within the Hana

17

District. 2. Acknowledge and respect family

18

ancestral ties to cultural resources."

19

You don't see this happening much in other

20

areas where families really want to protect heiaus,

21

really want to protect, you know, family land, and

22

even land that people may have bought and now want

23

to develop. Because these families carry on the

24

history and the significance of a place like Hana.

25

This is the reason why I believe we need this number
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one to move on with the cultural overlay district

2

and not again take this away. This is the reason

3

why after that meeting this was put in. And -- and

4

because of, you know, some thinking about why Kalani

5

was so, you know, vigilant about looking at this.

6

This is only because the people of Hana spoke, Mr.

7

Carroll, about this. 200 people, they stayed up

8

over 12 o'clock to address their concerns.

9

And so, you know, if we're going to have any

10

reference in here in regards to the ordinance that

11

has been proposed, I would again ask that as has

12

been spoken by other members, that we move into

13

creating overlay districts and not eliminating them.

14

Because I believe that from what I remember now why

15

this was added and why the people in Hana came out

16

and publicly spoke -- I think many of you that have

17

visited Hana during public hearings also can see

18

that they are very tied to their cultural and family

19

and ancestral kind of lands. It's what they have

20

been taught, it's what they feel, it's what they

21

speak of. It's not like many of us that come from

22

different places and -- and have no real culture to

23

talk about. They have. I think we should respect

24

and I think we should move into this direction

25

because I think this culture that is slowly eroding
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because of urban kinds of thinking and consciousness

2

needs to be preserved. I think it's important and I

3

think this Council wants to be sensitive.
And so, you know, I would ask that we not

4
5

move in the direction that we're headed towards.

6

And then that's it. That's all I'll be saying.

7

Thank you.

8
9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Further discussion? Councilmember
Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
Mr. Nishiki is correct, Hana has a special

11
12

culture that we wish to preserve and we wish to have

13

some effective vehicle to preserve it. What we have

14

before us now is not an effective vehicle. We have

15

something that refers to nothing. I would hope

16

that, again, we send this back to the community.

17

When it comes back from the Hana community again and

18

comes back to us, I hope that we can make some

19

recommendations to meet the goals that Mr. Nishiki

20

is talking about. And I would hope, again, that all

21

would unanimously send this back to Hana. Thank

22

you.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson.

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I just had two small little

25

things. On the third Whereas, I would just insert,
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1

"WHEREAS an ordinance establishing cultural overlay

2

districts has not been enacted to date." Just add

3

in "to date."
And then I would strike the fourth Whereas

4
5

because I don't want to send the wrong message. You

6

know, because just because we're not currently

7

considering it, I don't -- I think it's kind of

8

redundant so I would strike the fourth Whereas.
And those would be the only amendments that I

9
10

would make. And then I would also ask that when we

11

transmit this we also transmit the minutes to the

12

Hana community.

13
14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any objections to -- to the changes that
Jo Anne is proposing to this?

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No objections. Okay. Then we'll do that.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair. Mr. Chair.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: For me personally, the third -- the

20

first suggestion of "to date" for me doesn't seem

21

like it's necessary. I have no problem with

22

striking of the fourth Whereas. Just for the

23

record.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other discussion? If not, we
have a motion on the floor. All those in favor say
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aye.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No. Mr. Chair. Wait. Wait.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Are you doing it in amendment style

5

or are you just saying that this is a friendly

6

amendment? So what is it?

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: This is a friendly amendment because this

8

resolution is a form resolution. So as the

9

fourth -- we're sort of agreeing that what

10

Councilmember Johnson is saying is okay. We're just

11

going to do it. If you want to do it as a vote on

12

this, that's fine. We can do it that way, too.

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just asking so we're clear, Mr.
Chair, that's all.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: I don't think it's really necessary
because it is a format.
Councilmember Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So what is paragraph 3 going to be
actually stating?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: "WHEREAS an ordinance establishing

21

cultural overlay district has not been enacted to

22

date." And eliminating the No. 4 Whereas.

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because I don't want it to be

24

assumed, either, that a cultural overlay district

25

ordinance will be enacted. That's not accurate,
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2

either. The Council has not made a determination -CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'll tell you what. On paragraph 3 let's

3

take a vote on how many would be willing to add in

4

the words "to date." Make a motion, Jo Anne.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I make a motion that the third

6

paragraph state, "WHEREAS an ordinance establishing

7

cultural overlay districts has not been enacted to

8

date."

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Second? Is there a second?

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved by Jo Anne, seconded by

12

Charmaine to add the "to date." Discussion? Okay.

13

All those in favor say aye.

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: One no. Motion carried.

18

VOTE: AYES:

19
20
21
22
23

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Molina, Nishiki, Tavares and Chair
Arakawa.
Councilmember Kane.
None.
None.
Councilmember Kawano.
APPROVING THE ADDITION OF TEXT "TO DATE"
TO THE END OF THE THIRD PARAGRAPH.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Motion to strike paragraph 4.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I make a motion to strike
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paragraph 4 from the proposed resolution.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved and seconded to strike

4

paragraph 4 by Jo Anne and seconded by Charmaine.

5

Discussion? If not, all those in favor say aye.

6

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We have one no. Okay.

10

VOTE: AYES:

11
12
13
14

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

15
16

Councilmember Carroll, Johnson, Kane,
Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and Chair
Arakawa.
Councilmember Hokama.
None.
None.
Councilmember Kawano.
APPROVING THE DELETION OF THE FOURTH
PARAGRAPH.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any other -- anything else? If not, to

17

the main motion as amended. All those in favor say

18

aye.

19

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Let the record show that we have

23

one no. Motion carried.

24
25
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1
2
3
4
5

VOTE: AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.

Councilmember
Kane, Molina,
Arakawa.
Councilmember
None.
None.
Councilmember

Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Tavares, and Chair
Nishiki.
Kawano.

8

ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION REFERRING A
PROPOSED BILL DELETING REFERENCE TO THE
CULTURAL OVERLAY DISTRICTS IN ORDINANCE
NO. 2583, RELATING TO COMPREHENSIVE
RURAL ZONING IN HANA, TO THE MAUI
PLANNING COMMISSION.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And we are done with this item. We'll be

ACTION:

6
7

10

here until 2 o'clock in the morning if you keep this

11

up, Wayne.

12
13
14

28

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR HAIKU GETAWAY BED AND
BREAKFAST (C.C. No. 01-300)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Item No. -- Let's see. Item No. 28. We

15

have before us Item No.28, which is a Conditional

16

Permit to operate Haiku Getaway Bed-and-Breakfast.

17

This is proposed by Terry and Mele Strickland, the

18

owners of Haiku Getaway Bed-and-Breakfast. You

19

know, we have had a -- we've been having a large

20

push to try and get people to come in before us and

21

get their permits for this particular item, for

22

bed-and-breakfast-type situations.

23

So if we can have the Stricklands come up and

24

sort of give us a brief overview of what their

25

project is.
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2
3

MR. STRICKLAND: Thank you, Alan. Thank you, Board, for
hearing us today. We appreciate this.
We started our --

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Just state your name for the record.

5

MR. STRICKLAND: Oh. My name is Terry Strickland.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And your wife.

7

MR. STRICKLAND: We began our establishment a couple years

8

ago, not knowing there was even an ordinance in

9

existence. We were told by friends that all you

10

needed was tax accommodations or license, and then

11

you could go. And then when we discovered it, we

12

decided that because of our beliefs, we wanted to be

13

right before the government. So we started looking

14

into it and we applied.

15

Our application went in almost one year ago

16

today. It was July -- January 7th, I believe, is

17

the date of our actually turning in our application,

18

so it's been a very long process. We offer an

19

alternative to what -- you know, the west side.

20

People -- We're finding more and more people want to

21

get away from that touristy area of the islands.

22

They want to see what the pictures show, you know,

23

the tropical, so we -- we do offer that.

24
25

And we have a quiet little neighborhood and
it's -- it's a -- also we've been -- you know, we
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1

get comments from a lot of the businesses around us

2

that how they really appreciate because we refer all

3

of our guests down to the public cafe for breakfast

4

or to the video store right down the street or to

5

Ohashi Store to, you know, get their sundries and

6

get their things they need. Also Haiku Grocery and

7

many of the stores around us. And we also -- you

8

know, we feel we have -- also there's been some jobs

9

created through our establishment in our local area.

10

We have -- my wife's sister cleans the units for us

11

and there's an elderly lady across the street, Mrs.

12

Nakagawa, that provides us with fruits and flowers

13

and it helps her on her fixed income. So we really

14

feel we've been a real positive impact on our

15

neighborhood.

16

We have had absolutely no complaints, none,

17

from any of our neighbors about anything we have

18

done. This also helps us in my wife is a -- I

19

really -- one of my strong feelings is my wife to be

20

a stay-at-home mom. We have four children and three

21

are in school now, but this gives us a chance to

22

have her at home and not having to -- I mean, most

23

of us know that we all have to work these days, you

24

know, the wife and the husband are working these

25

days. And then you end up giving half that away to
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child care, so -- And my wife is a local girl, she

2

was -- she has relatives going back here for over

3

150 years up to the Temsens up in Makawao. And

4

it's -- we really feel this is, you know, our home

5

and we want to continue to, you know, live in Maui.

6

We did have some areas that we sent to you

7

requesting waiver of a couple of the issues on our

8

Planning Commission's report. One question -- one

9

was in question and it's not asking for waiver, it

10

was the certificate of occupancy. And kind of gone

11

around on this one, but it was on one of the

12

conditions that Planning Commission required. And I

13

spoke to Mr. Min about it and he told me that Ralph

14

Takamini from the Land Use and Codes had said we

15

needed to get that. And I talked to Mr. Takamini

16

and he said that that's not really right, that

17

they're not requiring any of the bed-and-breakfasts

18

to get certificate of occupancy. So this is a gray

19

area we need -- And I have spoke with Ms. Higa,

20

maybe she has some -- can shed some light on that

21

area. So we're kind of wondering about that.

22

The other areas were landscape and survey.

23

We have been requested to provide a survey, a

24

topographical survey of our land and I guess there's

25

an area of question on an aisle width. Ms. -- I
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just want to -- the report that was from the

2

Planning Commission, Ms. Higa had written, I just

3

want to quote that however the site visit indicates

4

that the distance from the garage wall to the

5

property on Haiku Road appears to be less than 5

6

feet. And I think you have a picture of me laying

7

on the ground there and I'm 6 foot 3. I think it

8

will clearly show that it's much more than 5 feet.

9

Actually it's 11 feet. We measured -- I took a

10

tape, measured, took a picture, but unfortunately

11

the picture came out blurry so you couldn't read it.

12

I was -- we were going to send that one, so this one

13

was our secondary picture to state -- show that our

14

property line is the wall there with the vines

15

growing on it.

16

The other area was the -- an amendment to the

17

original at the first -- at the Planning Commission

18

hearing was to have us to renotify our neighbors

19

within -- at the one-year renewal when we come up

20

for review again in one year. And these areas

21

are -- we've incurred so many incredible costs in

22

this project, more than we ever envisioned. I mean,

23

our letter states that well over 6,000 in my time

24

loss from work plus all the, you know, engineering

25

things we have had to have done. And now these are
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more, you know, real costly items that are going to

2

be coming up. Getting the surveying, you know, and

3

landscaping plans and the registering for mail,

4

that's $250 because we have a lot of neighbors and

5

it's a residential area so we have -- you know,

6

these are big costs and there are other costs, you

7

know, we have coming up.

8

And we understand that there's got to be

9

rules and guidelines set up. We're not arguing that

10

at all. We really feel very strongly there needs to

11

be -- like the fire, this is going to be a cost out

12

of our pocket to buy fire extinguishers and have --

13

you know, get more additional -- we have smoke

14

detectors in our house, but they're all battery and

15

they have to be hard-wired. So this is more wiring,

16

more -- you know, more -- more and more costs. And

17

a driveway apron for our cottage. And then to get

18

the million dollar bond. And, you know, these are

19

things that we don't really -- we don't contest

20

these areas, you know, but we just want you to

21

please understand we're not Wal-Mart. We're a

22

little mom-and-pop business, you know, and we're

23

just trying to survive. And with all these huge

24

costs, it's really taken its toll on us, you know,

25

trying to -- it's a long-term recovery process.
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2

I think that's -- that's covered most of the
areas that I wanted to address.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

4

MR. STRICKLAND: So thank you so much for your time. And

5

if you have any questions, I'll try and --

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm going to ask the Department to present

7

a little bit, and then you'll be available for

8

questions so we'll ask questions then.

9
10

MR. STRICKLAND: Yes.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Julie. We're going to be setting up the

11

big screen, so this is all going to come down. I'm

12

going to take a few minutes recess. Don't everybody

13

leave because as soon as this comes down, we'll

14

start again. Recess.

15

(Gavel.)

RECESS: 3:42 p.m.

16

RECONVENE: 3:44 p.m.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Going to call the Land Use

18

Committee meeting back to order.

19

Julie, your presentation.

20

(Gavel.)

MS. HIGA: Okay. This is looking -- this is on Haiku Road

21

and the site is over there where you see the white,

22

white spot. And that's Mrs. Strickland walking on

23

Haiku. That's south of Haiku Road looking west.

24

And the right-hand side is north. This is West

25

Kuiaha Road and then there's this -- and Haiku Road
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right here. Right by that truck there's a street

2

that cuts across that corner, and that allows for a

3

left-hand turn and right-hand -- left-hand turn on

4

to Haiku Road and also a right-hand turn on to West

5

Kuiaha Street.

6

If you notice the terrain, there's no

7

parking. It's a substandard agricultural lot. The

8

right-hand side is Ag., State Ag., and the property

9

is surrounded on the south and east side with

10

agriculture. This is on the north side of Haiku

11

Road and the property goes on to West Kuiaha. And

12

you'll notice the terrain is a lower slope there.

13

There's a slope on that side of the property. So

14

the flat area that's towards Haiku Road is the

15

housing -- the single-family dwelling as well as the

16

ohana dwelling.

17

The -- the property is supposed to have a

18

15-foot setback for a front yard, but it doesn't

19

quite meet the 15-feet setback. It was built in

20

1988, I think it was. And the applicant just bought

21

the property in 199 -- I have the right date, 1998

22

and operated -- started operating the B&B on

23

vacation rentals in 1999, a year later, I guess.

24
25

The applicant is requesting two units, A and
B, two bedrooms, for a B&B in their single-family
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dwelling, as well as the ohana dwelling for a B&B is

2

a two-bedroom, one-bath ohana dwelling. The ohana

3

dwelling was approved as a 500-square-foot cottage,

4

but then it's been increased to 760, I think, square

5

feet, I believe. But at the time the County -- it

6

was in the interim zoning district and the County

7

also allowed second dwellings on the property if it

8

was more than the required -- and this district is

9

R-3, so 10,000-square-feet lots, so they allowed a

10

second dwelling. So on that basis we could have

11

allowed a second dwelling on the lot, which would

12

not have a minimal square foot requirement of 600

13

square feet. And R-3 district in the zoning code

14

allows 600 square feet for 10,000-square-foot lots.

15

The -- we're looking -- here is the

16

single-family dwelling, the main dwelling, the unit

17

A is next to the garage. This is the unit A. And

18

the second -- and it's enclosed by a fence, which

19

provides some privacy for that unit. Then there's a

20

walkway. The fence -- there's a fenced walkway to

21

separate both units as well as the ohana unit on the

22

property. I have a -- this is -- the ohana unit is

23

located -- it looks like a separate lot, but

24

actually it's one lot, since it's separated by a

25

fence. And there's a concrete wall between the --
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right here on Haiku Road. And the -- and the back

2

side of the property there's also a concrete wall

3

separating that lot. The adjacent lot is in the R-3

4

and then the lot beyond that is in the State

5

Agriculture District, so -- and the setback is -- it

6

meets the setback requirements for the ohana unit.

7

This is inside the ohana unit with the two

8

bedrooms and one bath. The original building permit

9

had the -- a deck surrounding and that has been

10

enclosed with the screen porch and that's considered

11

part of the floor area.

12

So the question is the front yard within

13

the -- where the garage is located for the main

14

dwelling where the -- there's less than 15-feet

15

setback and originally it should have been 15 feet.

16

That's the end of the property line. That's looking

17

towards the east side of Haiku Road. And this is

18

now looking west on Haiku Road and that's where the

19

applicant -- where you see the cars -- is proposing

20

to put in their parking in that parking area.

21

This is unit A right here, which I wasn't

22

able to go into that unit. And then so -- on this

23

side also is a drainage as well as around the fence

24

area is the cesspool for the ohana unit. That was

25

another issue, is that we couldn't -- until
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September of this year we received verification that

2

there was another cesspool for the ohana unit. And

3

that's been, you know, throughout the problem of

4

this application is that we didn't have enough

5

information or the information wasn't available and

6

so we had to place some conditions on there. And

7

that's the reasons for all of the conditions that we

8

included in there.

9

This is unit B, inside of unit B. And this

10

is a door that leads into the hallway. And there's

11

another door and the bedroom across this doorway.

12

And that was another question that was raised on the

13

building permit requirements for having those doors

14

within this hallway there.

15

And I think each -- you'll notice each of the

16

units have their own barbecue grill and it's like a

17

mini suite-like setup. This is looking -- oh, it's

18

on West Kuiaha Road looking south. And the --

19

there's a concrete wall on this side of the property

20

as well. So it's a nice location in that it -- it's

21

convenient and walking distance within the

22

commercial area where you can get to the cannery,

23

it's maybe about seven blocks away from the cannery

24

and commercial area. From a land use point of view,

25

it's a good location because it's convenient within
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2
3
4

walking distance of commercial areas.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Done, Julie? Okay. A short recess.
(Gavel.)
RECESS: 3:52 p.m.

5

RECONVENE: 3:53 p.m.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: (Gavel.) Questions, Committee members?

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Question.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama. Who would you like

9
10

to address the question to?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Planning Department, please,

11

Chairman.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.

14

Upon hearing some of the comments from the

15

applicant, can you tell the Committee this

16

afternoon -- and I guess this is more regarding the

17

Special Condition 6 to 18, are they being asked

18

particularly with the certificate of occupancy for

19

things that we normally don't ask other applicants

20

to provide? Because I thought it was interesting on

21

their comment regarding Condition No. 8.

22

MS. HIGA: The reason we're doing that is because the

23

structure didn't have a permit, a legal permit, just

24

the main 500 square feet.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Which structure?
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MS. HIGA: The ohana unit did not have a building permit,

2

was for the 500-square-feet area only. So the rest

3

of it is -- was not -- there's no legal permit for

4

that part, you know, which is the lanai and

5

originally it was identified as a deck. And once

6

you cover it, it's considered a -- you know, part of

7

the floor area of a structure. Once you enclose and

8

cover, it's considered part of the floor area.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, that makes sense to
me.
The main building is how many rooms? They're

11
12

asking to use two out of, what, three rooms? Two

13

out of five rooms? Two out of four rooms?

14

MS. HIGA: It was two out of -- in Exhibit 4 would show

15

you. Two of --

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Five.

17

MS. HIGA: -- five bedrooms.

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And the ohana is two out of --

19

MS. HIGA: In two units inside.

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Two out of two?

21

MS. HIGA: The ohana unit has two bedrooms and they want

22

to use the whole thing for vacation rental. And

23

inside the house, two units. All together is four

24

units.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Regarding the -- now, the
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15-feet setback that's continuously being brought

2

up, this is regarding the main house?

3

MS. HIGA: Yes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But they did receive a County

5

building permit for the construction of that unit --

6

well, not them particularly, but whoever was the

7

owner at that time?

8

MS. HIGA: Yes. Right.

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So the 15-foot setback is really

10
11

because of the County's -MS. HIGA: I think there's the garage now that I don't

12

know whether it was originally a carport and what --

13

maybe it did meet the 15 in, you know, how it was

14

constructed, the garage.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Because of that side road

16

you showed us off Kuiaha, what, did the easement or

17

the right-of-way change in that area and that's why

18

we may not be making the standards? Or is that

19

not --

20

MS. HIGA: I don't know.

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- a concern?

22

MS. HIGA: I don't know what the history of how Haiku

23

Road, whether there was additional easement --

24

there's a 6-foot easement on Haiku Road, but whether

25

or not additional -- you know, if that's a new
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requirement after the building permit, you know, was

2

issued or when it was applied, I'm not sure.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. One thing I wanted to ask

4

regarding this request, because we use the term

5

transient accommodations under the B&B, I was -- I

6

understood it that you would have only one area for

7

serving and preparation of meals. Is this asking us

8

to allow two, one in the -- in both dwelling units?

9

Because that's what I was -- You could see, like you

10

mentioned, you know, various barbecue pits, this and

11

that.

12

MS. HIGA: They're not serving meals. And each one is not

13

allowed to have a kitchen except for the ohana unit.

14

You know, the ohana unit has its own kitchen, but

15

the two bedrooms in the main dwelling are not

16

allowed to have a kitchen. That's just by our

17

zoning code.

18
19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Permits. Yeah. Okay. Public
Works is requiring all parking on site?

20

MS. HIGA: The Title 19 requires parking on site.

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So what more do they need

22

to -- should we give them approval, what do they

23

need to satisfy?

24
25

MS. HIGA: They need to comply with Chapter 19.36 in order
to provide parking for the two bed-and-breakfast
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units in the house, as well as for the two units in

2

the ohana dwelling, as well as for their own

3

parking. They need to provide two parking spaces

4

for their own.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And they're going to need a

6

sign-off from the Fire Department or Fire Marshal

7

regarding the equipment?

8
9
10

MS. HIGA: Yes. They need to provide the evacuation plan,
fire extinguishers, and the smoke detectors.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I was curious, is that a

11

requirement that the fire -- smoke detectors need to

12

be grounded by a regular electrical --

13

MS. HIGA: It is.

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So if the power goes off?

15

?: Battery backup.

16

MS. HIGA: It's battery backup.

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Battery backup requirements.

18

MS. HIGA: Right.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? Councilmember

21

Molina.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. A question

23

for the Department. Any reactions from the

24

neighbors? And approximately how much people can be

25

accommodated at one time say on a full day for this
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proposed bed-and-breakfast -- or, actually, I should

2

say to be in compliance?

3
4
5
6

MS. HIGA: I think we're talking about eight, two per
bedroom.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So as much as eight in the house at
one time?

7

MS. HIGA: Uh-huh.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And the neighbors, there's

9

been no concerns expressed?

10

MS. HIGA: We have not had any opposition.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Julie, Exhibit 3, I think he's got

14

his plot plan for parking. All of the parking -- or

15

they enclosed that two-car garage or is that an

16

enclosed area off the main dwelling?

17

MS. HIGA: The two-car garage?

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You see Exhibit 3?

19

MS. HIGA: I see, yeah.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Haiku Road and then it says

21

two-car garage parking. Is that parking or is that

22

an enclosed area?

23

MS. HIGA: They have to -- they had had storage. As I was

24

told, it was being used for storage, but I didn't --

25

I didn't inspect it at all. But they -- they were
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1

told that they have to provide their parking, two

2

parking spaces for their main dwelling.

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And two more for the ohana, which
is four?

5

MS. HIGA: Four.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And when you looked at where the

7

parking is, does it meet --

8

MS. HIGA: Well, it didn't --

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: By the ohana it says parking

10
11
12
13

there, right, is that -MS. HIGA: They need two parking for the ohana and two for
the unit A and B.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So the ohana looks like there's

14

going to be one between the ohana and the main

15

dwelling? Is that one parking?

16

MS. HIGA: Right.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And then the other is going to be

18

fronting Haiku Road off the ohana? Is that another

19

parking stall?

20

MS. HIGA: Right. That's for the ohana unit.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Those are the two for the

22

ohana.

23

MS. HIGA: Right.

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And then the two to make the two

25

dwellings in the main dwelling, the two rooms,
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2

units, is going to be located where?
MS. HIGA: On the left-hand side where you see -- on

3

the -- fronting Haiku Road on the left of the

4

parking garage.

5
6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, okay. Okay. I see that.
Compact and then standard parking.

7

MS. HIGA: Right.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's the two. And then for

9
10

themselves they don't need to provide any parking or
they can park on the grass?

11

MS. HIGA: The two-car garage.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Two-car garage.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, that's the garage there.

14

MS. HIGA: Right.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

16

MS. HIGA: It's for their unit.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So they satisfy the

18
19

parking.
MS. HIGA: On the plan, yeah, they do. So the requirement

20

is that they have to comply with 19.36 in order to

21

not maneuver into Haiku Road as well as provide the

22

actual parking space as well as the aisle that's

23

required in 19.36. And just from the inspection, it

24

looked like they didn't have enough to meet the

25

minimum. They would have to, you know, maybe go
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into -- go further into that fenced area.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That fenced area there.

3

MS. HIGA: Right.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And they could comply then. Okay.

5

Thank you. That's a fence, that's not a concrete

6

wall?

7

MS. HIGA: No. It's a wooden fence.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'm done. Thank you.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? Julie, Item No. 7,

10

I have a note that that condition has already been

11

met?

12

MS. HIGA: Right, the cesspool. Condition 7 was put in

13

because at the time we didn't know where the

14

cesspool for the ohana unit was located or whether

15

there was one. And so they have now complied with

16

that, so the Department is asking that Condition 7

17

be deleted.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Do we have to delete it or can you

19

just leave it there as done, completed? Would you

20

prefer us to delete it?

21

MS. HIGA: They have already provided us with the

22

contractor's verification as well as the map that

23

shows the location of the cesspool, so that

24

satisfies that condition.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's what I'm asking you. Should we
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1

delete it or does it just satisfy the condition and

2

it's done?

3

MS. HIGA: Yeah. It's done, but you could -- well, you

4

could either leave it or delete it. But since they

5

have done it, it wouldn't be necessary to leave it,

6

but --

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Johnson.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In the area that the applicant was

9

talking about with regard to the certificate of

10

occupancy, we have a category now that's called

11

after-the-fact building permit.

12

MS. HIGA: Right.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Are you basically saying that that

14

mechanism would not satisfy this particular

15

condition? I think it's like $300.

16

MS. HIGA: That would satisfy it. Or even a miscellaneous

17

inspection maybe. And I'm not aware with Public

18

Works, you know, whether they would go with the

19

miscellaneous inspection or with the after-the-fact

20

permit.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just in -- my personal

22

preference is to try to make it as easy for them as

23

possible. And, you know, whichever would be the

24

least onerous of those two, that's what I would

25

prefer that they do.
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And then my other question has to do with the

2

length of time, because there are some very heavy

3

expenses that are going to be incurred. Is it the

4

Chair's recommendation that this be only for a

5

one-year period, or are you recommending -- or will

6

you be recommending for a longer period of time?

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The Chair is in kind of debating this

8

mentally. You know, there are a lot of people that

9

are coming in and the costs are very exorbitant on a

10

lot of this stuff. Generally the first year, if it

11

has been nonexistent before, it would be good to be

12

able to have reaction from the community, but those

13

that have been in process already and the community

14

has had a lot of time to respond, if there are no

15

concerns coming out of the community, I would

16

actually prefer to have longer term just because of

17

the costs. If there are objections from the

18

community, of course, we have to consider that, but

19

it seems to be very compatible with this community,

20

no complaint, so I would actually prefer a

21

three-year period.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I was thinking, Mr. Chair, along

23

the -- let's say because of the expenses involved in

24

coming up to code, I was thinking more on -- in the

25

neighborhood of five years, because even the
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one-year period just a lot of that is prepping for

2

it. So probably in another year and a half to two

3

years they would have to start preparing to come

4

back again if they're going to comply. And it might

5

even be in a year and a half because -- if the

6

Planning Department's schedule is tight. So I would

7

be inclined to maybe look at five years with the

8

condition as long as there's no problems with the

9

area residents.

10
11
12
13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. That's fine by me.
Any other discussion? Councilmember Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think Julie wanted to say
something, if we could hear from her.

14

MS. HIGA: Since David Goode is here, maybe we could ask

15

him on that miscellaneous inspection versus

16

after-the-fact permit, whether it would take --

17

which would take care of what. Because I'm not sure

18

about that.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Well, in either case, when the

20

Department is looking at it, they can make their

21

best decision how it should be. We can ask Dave,

22

but I think we should give them the discretion to

23

come in with whatever process they feel is best at

24

the time. So if that's okay, we'll just leave it up

25

to the Department.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I know, but I think that the

2

applicant would like to know and not leave it up to

3

the Department because basically if we can address

4

that, you know, in here and just know right away

5

what that's going to take to satisfy that, that -- I

6

think it would help clarify it for the applicant.

7
8
9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: David, are you ready? If you would like
to comment on that.
MR. GOODE: Okay. The issue here is regarding the portion

10

of the structure that's -- didn't have a building

11

permit?

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Correct.

13

MR. GOODE: Okay. So essentially what they need to do is

14

come in for an after-the-fact building permit for

15

which they pay double the fee due to the fact that

16

it's after the fact. And we can process it as such.

17

And generally after-the-fact permit would have the

18

plans attached and we would send the inspectors out,

19

so it would be building, plumbing, electrical. And

20

then at that point we can -- as soon as everything

21

is in order, can give final sign-off on the building

22

checklist.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you, David.

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I just wanted to make sure

25

that -- you know, what the time frame that we're

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

90

LU 12/3/01

1

looking at, whichever also in terms of time would

2

take the least amount of time. So I am assuming

3

that that would be the least onerous.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: David.

5

MR. GOODE: The time on our side will be pretty quick.

6

It's going to be up to the applicant to draw up the

7

plans. And then if things need to be amended or

8

changed, say it doesn't meet code, they're going to

9

need to make some changes, but I -- In light of the

10

fact that the building is -- the structure is not

11

permitted at all, I think it's the only way to go,

12

is to get it permitted.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Continue.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One final question to the

15

Department. And Julie may be able to answer this.

16

As far as the topographical area that was referred

17

to, you know, because -- I am just assuming that the

18

cost particularly because you have to have a

19

professional do this, that that's a fairly expensive

20

thing. Is there any way that that particular

21

condition could be waived?

22

MS. HIGA: I think that the reason basically was because

23

we were not -- because of the way the plans were

24

submitted, it's a -- it's a basically hand-drawn

25

plot plan, so we're not aware of the location -- the
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exact location of the property line and the -- you

2

know, with the topography. And then how they would

3

be doing their -- how they would meet their 15-feet

4

requirement. It's, you know, all the requirements

5

of the development standards for that parking area.

6

So it -- they wouldn't necessarily have to do the

7

entire lot and then maybe you don't need to do it,

8

but it's to locate the pins and to have an accurate

9

description of the property basically. Because

10
11

right now it's not accurate.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, my only concern would

12

be there that any expense because they're having to

13

go to all this additional expense -- I realize they

14

have to comply with, you know, whatever our

15

requirements are, but I wonder if at the same time

16

when the inspectors go out to do some of the -- you

17

know, the site assessment and look at the other

18

areas, if they -- they would be able to note that

19

type of thing within their report, if that's within

20

the scope of their authority to actually just notate

21

and state where the pins were, whatever, so that

22

they could give a corroboration.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: David, would that meet your Department's

24

requirements? What happens -- whatever is requested

25

must meet the requirements of the Department as far
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1

as your intent. So if getting the pin mark --

2

accurate measurement of the pin is what your intent

3

is, then that can be the requirement rather than the

4

whole topographical. Or do you need the

5

topographical?

6

MS. HIGA: Well, I think a survey map or if they have an

7

accurate map that shows -- and they may have that

8

available, I don't know. And, you know, a draft

9

that's done by a draftsperson or a survey map that

10
11

shows that site.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So that would include all of the buildings

12

that are on it, the entire site? Not just the TMK

13

picture?

14

MS. HIGA: Yeah. It would be a survey map that shows the

15

property lines and the location of the easement for

16

the road easement. Because they're planning to put

17

the parking on -- on -- right up to the road.

18

That's -- that's the reason, part of the reason for

19

that.

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just like to hear --

21

MS. HIGA: Unless that portion of -- where they're parking

22
23

will be, just to be on the accurate location.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would just like to hear from the

24

applicant to see if that is -- if they understand

25

what they have to do and what their original
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objection was to that particular condition.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Mr. Strickland.

3

MR. STRICKLAND: We pretty much understand. Julie, I'm

4

not sure I understand you're saying 15 -- before the

5

aisle width was supposed to be 12, but now you're

6

saying 15. Which --

7
8
9

MS. HIGA: No. The 15 is the setback, the front yard
setback.
MR. STRICKLAND: To the house.

10

MS. HIGA: To the structure.

11

MR. STRICKLAND: Just for the record, that was a carport.

12

It has solid block wall, though, when we bought the

13

property. I can't believe it was ever added on to.

14

I added the garage door. I put the garage door. I

15

bought a used garage door and I put it on just for

16

security reasons. I don't know how that could have

17

ever gotten passed through building permits without

18

being permitted. I can tell you from being a

19

contractor that it -- the construction on this roof

20

system inside the attic is absolutely identical to

21

what was built there, which was unusual in it was

22

homemade trusses made, it was nothing fabricated. I

23

would have a hard time believing that that was added

24

on at some after-the-fact point. And unfortunately,

25

the Land Use and Code doesn't keep plans from 1975,
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which was when that house was constructed, 25 -- 26,

2

almost seven years ago. So there's nothing we can

3

refer back to to prove whether that garage was there

4

or it wasn't other than the square footage of the

5

house.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Jo Anne.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In your taxes, when you go to pay

8

annually, does it give a description of what -- you

9

know, when the tax assessor comes out and actually

10

makes an inspection, does it describe the square

11

footage that you're being taxed on and what you're

12

actually paying on your dwelling?

13

MR. STRICKLAND: It -- it -- that's -- we don't normally

14

do -- and it's part of our mortgage, so we don't

15

ever -- we haven't seen anything like that. And

16

there's been a real problem with our mortgage from

17

the very beginning. Our property was still -- in

18

Real Estate Division was still listed under the

19

previous owner up until last year. Finally -- I've

20

been like five trips trying to get this thing

21

straightened out. We finally have gotten it, so I

22

actually haven't seen a tax assessment come. It's

23

been going to the previous owner over these years,

24

so I haven't even seen it. But from what I

25

understand, a realtor let us know that it was -- I
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think it was 1464 square feet, but we have added by

2

permit a lanai, screened lanai on the front of the

3

house, so it's going to be larger now, but -- and

4

there was a subsequent -- there was -- the ohana

5

unit was originally pulled in '88 for

6

500-square-foot cottage. And then two months after

7

that permit was pulled, another additional permit

8

was pulled to enclose under the eaves a storage area

9

and add a deck around that. When we purchased the

10

property, the deck had a cover over it. It was not

11

disclosed to us in our disclosure statement that it

12

was not permitted when we purchased the house.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Terry.

14

MR. STRICKLAND: I'm sorry.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm going to cut you off.

16

MR. STRICKLAND: Okay. Sorry.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Because the intent what Jo Anne is trying

18

to get to --

19

MR. STRICKLAND: Okay.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- is different from where you're going

21

right now.

22

MR. STRICKLAND: Okay.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So if we can get back to the requirement.

24

MR. STRICKLAND: Okay. I do understand about --

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, do you have a problem with,
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you know, working with the Department to come to

2

some kind of resolution?

3

MR. STRICKLAND: We've -- You can ask Ms. Higa. We've

4

worked very hand in hand with the Department for a

5

year now, so it's -- there's never been a problem

6

with that in the communication on our part, that's

7

for sure, on meeting and satisfying all the

8

departments -- that's why it's taken so long, is to

9

go through all of these processes of meeting the

10
11

requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So is that -- if that condition

12

stays in, that would be agreeable to you, at least

13

as far as working with the Department to their

14

satisfaction?

15

MR. STRICKLAND: Yeah. The only thing -- I'm not sure

16

whether the after-the-fact permit -- again, from

17

a -- mainly just from a financial standpoint, if we

18

could have the option to looking into the -- the

19

other alternative and seeing what would --

20

miscellaneous certificate of occupancy and seeing

21

which direction we might want to go, I would

22

appreciate having possible that -- that option.

23
24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dave. Okay. David, is that -- do you
care to comment on that request?
MR. GOODE: I think it's accurate that we still have some
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portion of unpermitted structures. A miscellaneous

2

inspection could help identify which portion needs

3

to be permitted that perhaps isn't. That might give

4

you some guidance in terms of being able to minimize

5

the amount of work you need to do to develop those

6

plans. And the plans don't have to be complicated.

7

It's pretty straightforward. But as long as we have

8

some portion of the structure unpermitted, it's in

9

everybody's interest to get it permitted.

10

MR. STRICKLAND: Right, okay.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you,

13

Mr. Strickland.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So you can work with the Department to

15

look at what the requirements are for that?

16
17

MR. STRICKLAND: Yeah. We have from early on and it seems
we go in circles so it's --

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

19

MR. STRICKLAND: I've been trying to resolve some of these

20
21
22
23

issues for quite a while.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
We had another question. Bob, you had a
question?

24

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I have a comment.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Comment. Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. The

2

bed-and-breakfast portion of this I have no problem

3

with. I think bed-and-breakfasts are a traditional

4

thing. I think it's really good. They're self

5

controlling because nobody is going to let anybody

6

do anything in their house, so they can -- they're

7

not a nuisance and I think they're a benefit to the

8

community. However, ohana dwelling, we have ohana

9

dwellings that originated in this County for that

10

name, ohana. It was to provide a means for families

11

to build small houses for their children or other

12

family members because they couldn't get land of

13

their own or they couldn't afford it. And this was

14

the sole intent of this. It was agreed that if

15

somebody built an ohana unit and that their family

16

moved out or if they really didn't have family, if

17

they rented it for long-term rentals, it still

18

helped to solve our housing problem. The direction

19

we are going now with this is compounding our

20

housing problem. Rents are artificially high on

21

Maui. Units are not readily available, especially

22

on the low end, because we have a proliferation of

23

short-term vacation rentals. We had a meeting in

24

Haiku, me and Mr. Molina, the other day at which one

25

member over there, Mr. Nikhilananda said on his road
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they had upwards of 20 short-term vacation rentals

2

all similar to this application. These are

3

removing -- the worst part I see, these are removing

4

really a huge number of the affordable rental units

5

from Maui County. If we aren't going to address

6

this, if we are going to approve piecemeal, no

7

matter how good it sounds, no matter how outstanding

8

the people are, without addressing the problem as a

9

whole, we are going to have -- you think its bad

10

now, East Maui is unbelievable. Behind Haiku, the

11

store over there and Minit Stop and -- not Minit

12

Stop, that -- the small store they have.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: (Inaudible).

14

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Right. It's just unbelievable.

15

They have whole streets where they have only two

16

people actually in residence anymore. The rest are

17

all short-term vacation rentals.

18

I have no problem approving the

19

bed-and-breakfast, but I would ask all my fellow

20

Council members to consider -- We talk about

21

supporting our people over here, we talk about

22

getting people off the beach, we talk about having

23

adequate housing, but if we keep on in this

24

direction, I can promise you that we are going to

25

see no adequate housing in the lower rents. We even
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have short-term vacation rentals in Kahului, in the

2

increment. Can you believe that? I can't believe

3

anybody would want to take a vacation rental in the

4

increment, but that's how far we have gone. And

5

this I don't have to prove. Anybody that can go use

6

the Internet can pull it up and verify what I am

7

telling you right now.

8
9

We have enforcement problems, as Mr. Min will
tell you, and it's been a very difficult thing to

10

address for the County, for the Planning Department,

11

and for enforcement. But because it's difficult to

12

address, are we going to ignore it? What is going

13

to be the final result? The final result is we are

14

not going to see any rentals in the low income,

15

middle income area, because it is not attractive.

16

The applicant can tell you today, what is the

17

difference between a long-term rental and a

18

short-term rental. It's huge. And if it's not in a

19

place that is legally permitted now, I don't think

20

it's appropriate. There's a reason why we have it

21

in only certain areas, and that was so this wouldn't

22

happen. So we wouldn't have a proliferation of

23

short-term rentals and we wouldn't have the adverse

24

effect on our housing market.

25

I cannot support this. I support fully the
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bed-and-breakfast. Anybody wants to bring people

2

into their home, I don't care where it is, I can

3

support something like that. The vacation rentals,

4

I'm sorry, unless this Council along with the

5

Planning Department, the Planning Commission, puts

6

together something, some sort of policy that's

7

enforceable, some kind of control, I cannot support

8

this at this time. Thank you.

9
10
11

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further discussion? Charmaine, then
Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I think we should be asking

12

our questions to the Stricklands at this point. I

13

wasn't quite finished yet, but he was going

14

somewhere in the discussion when it was beyond what

15

Ms. Johnson was talking about. And I wanted to hear

16

a little bit more about where you were going with

17

that, that area. I think you were talking about

18

some of the trials and tribulations of having the --

19

the title -- the title to the property recorded.

20

MR. STRICKLAND: Oh, yeah. Yeah. I couldn't believe it

21

could have happened. I don't know how something as

22

important as a real estate transfer could happen.

23

But, yeah, we got a call probably eight months ago

24

or so from the previous owner who lives on the Big

25

Island saying, I'm getting your tax things, you
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know, you need to get that straightened out. And

2

I've been down there I don't know how many times to

3

show them all the recorded deed, the deeds are

4

recorded, everything, and it's still -- but it is --

5

from what I understand, it is -- has been finally

6

transferred into our name. And I found that

7

quite --

8
9
10
11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And you went through a realtor in
the purchase of this home?
MR. STRICKLAND: Yes. Yes, we did. We went through a
realtor and a mortgage company --

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It was a licensed realtor?

13

MR. STRICKLAND: -- Bank of Hawaii as the lender and it

14
15

was -- it was -- Yeah. Oh, yeah, licensed realtor.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Then I think you need to

16

hold your realtor accountable for some of the things

17

that weren't disclosed. I think it's extremely

18

unfair that you have to go back and pay for a permit

19

for something that another owner did because you're

20

now buying the house and it wasn't disclosed to you.

21

So I think that you'll be able -- you should be able

22

to get some relief through the realtor or somehow

23

like that. If not, you report them to the Board of

24

Realtors. Because they come before us a lot and

25

talk about how ethical they are. And when I hear
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things like this I begin to wonder if, you know, the

2

ones who speak to us are ethical and then everybody

3

else who doesn't speak with us isn't ethical. But I

4

don't believe that you should be stuck paying for

5

something that was not in your time or under your

6

control. So I would urge you to go back to your

7

realtor and make some noise about it. I think it's

8

extremely unfair to you people, you know, as owners

9

not to know all the ins and outs of what that

10

property contains or doesn't contain. And that's

11

the whole purpose of disclosure, so we can avoid

12

some of these problems for our residents. So that

13

was my other question, is if you were at -- had a

14

realtor.

15

MR. STRICKLAND: Well, I was just going to say, from what

16

I understand that realty company is not existent any

17

more. But the one -- some of the questions that

18

are -- some of the small improvements that I have

19

made -- some of the improvements that I did and I am

20

guilty and I want to get corrected now. The one

21

that's real -- the one of the main issues was the

22

covered lanai. I screened it in and I had to

23

remodel the roof that was there because it was in

24

some disrepair. So, you know, I did some work on to

25

it. But, like I said, I never knew it wasn't. And
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had I gone -- from what research I have done now,

2

and maybe the gentleman back here could verify that,

3

if I had gone a year and a half ago, before our

4

property went out of interim -- interim zoning and

5

went into the R-2 or R-3, I'm not sure, Julie, which

6

we are, but if I had applied for the after-the-fact

7

dwelling at that point permit, I could have gotten

8

it because you were allowed to do a second full-size

9

dwelling. But now that it's changed and I have

10

talked to Clayton -- not Clayton, Clement at Land

11

Use and Codes, I have talked to Jimmy Dupont.

12

Apparently we're just up the creek without a paddle

13

now. If I had known this, I could have corrected

14

it, and now I can't. Now I'm told that after I

15

spent, you know, close to over $1,000, you know,

16

reroofing and everything, I'm going to have to tear

17

this roof off of my deck so -- other than within the

18

variance. And so the variance would obviously be my

19

next choice. So we're hoping -- we're working

20

towards trying to get these things resolved and it

21

is a slow process. It's harder to get a straight

22

answer from all the different departments working

23

together. So we're working at it.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have one more question for you.
At the time you purchased this property had you
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2

intended to make it a bed-and-breakfast operation?
MR. STRICKLAND: Not at all, no. We did not have that

3

intent at all when we purchased the property. That

4

was over a year -- over a year after we had

5

purchased the property we moved that direction

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Had the prior owner been operating

7
8
9
10
11
12

a bed-and-breakfast?
MR. STRICKLAND: No. No. No. It was just regular
rental.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
I have one question for the Planning -Planning Department.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Julie, in one of the conditions it

15

says that the parking -- that there will be two

16

paved parking and the other four can be gravel or

17

grass. And --

18

MS. HIGA: Condition 10.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Condition 10. So they

20

already have two paved parking if, in fact, the

21

garage is a garage.

22

MS. HIGA: Yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

24

MS. HIGA: They could identify that as the paved

25

parking --
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The paved ones. Okay.

2

MS. HIGA: -- for the unit A and B.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. That's all.

4

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Nishiki.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Strickland, having heard Mr.

7

Carroll's statement in regards to what the direction

8

and reason for ohana dwellings and the ordinance and

9

why we passed it was for, and it was basically to

10

address the shortage of housing that we here, the

11

residents of Maui of County are having because land

12

and housing costs are so much compared to perhaps

13

what we make because much of the job and

14

opportunities here in Maui County are service

15

oriented, meaning working at the hotels or working

16

as salespeople and it seems like that end of the

17

spectrum in regards to what you get compensated for

18

is very low, do you have any statement to make in

19

regards to eliminating that portion of your permit

20

to allow you to rent it for long term or any type of

21

statement to make?

22

MR. STRICKLAND: Yeah, I would like to address that. And

23

I respect Mr. Carroll's point of view. He also made

24

another good point of view is that -- is that I

25

don't -- I believe the credible part of this --
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Okay. First, I believe that that's why there is a

2

certificate -- I mean, a conditional use. There are

3

times where things like that are allowed, so it is

4

the law that it can happen, is one side. The other

5

side, the bigger problem, and Mr. Carroll addressed

6

it, was the illegal bed-and-breakfasts on this

7

island. There are thousands. You close them down,

8

we will not have a shortage of housing. If you -- I

9

have a guy I work with who's looking for housing.

10

September 10th there was about four places for rent.

11

Now if you look on the paper, there's like 40

12

Up-Country. And it's due to there's no more

13

tourists coming over. Bed-and-breakfasts that

14

aren't in the public eye, which is where all the

15

investigation can only find them through the

16

internet, phone book or newspaper. There are

17

ways -- And I promise you there are thousands of

18

bed-and-breakfasts you'll never find because there

19

are ways to do it without being found. Okay? And,

20

you know, if -- and I feel sorry for the Planning

21

Department because if they all start coming forward

22

to get legal, their paperwork is going to be huge.

23

That's the answer to this problem, is closing down

24

the illegal ones, and not so much trying to -- I

25

don't know, I don't want to say punishing those that
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2

are trying to get legal, but -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. No. No. I respect your --

3

that whole story that you gave -- gave us just now,

4

but cutting to the question about --

5

MR. STRICKLAND: I do recognize --

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- you being not able to use that

7

as bed-and-breakfast, but just as an ohana dwelling

8

for long-term rental, is there a financial

9

implication that could hurt you?

10

MR. STRICKLAND: Well, no -- well, not financially so

11

much. We'll abide by the law. You guys are the law

12

right here and we'll do what you request us to do.

13

The only thing is my wife has a mother that lives on

14

Oahu and she does come to visit us on a regular --

15

and we do put her in -- usually one of our units

16

in -- if the other two units which are the more

17

affordable ones in our house are full, we'll -- we

18

like to have our cottage available to put her in.

19

We do have, you know, my wife's -- like I said, her

20

family goes back generations here, so we do have

21

family here and they do occasionally -- my family

22

comes from the mainland to use them, too. But I

23

understand the ohana and how it was written. I am

24

aware of it, yes, I am.

25

Did I answer your question, Mr. Nishiki? I'm
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not sure.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Kind of.

3

MR. STRICKLAND: Okay. Let me elaborate.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I was just -- I was hoping you

5

would say, ah, no problem, leave it long term and

6

we'll work it out.

7

MR. STRICKLAND: If -- I would prefer to do the vacation

8

rental, but, like I said, if you rule here that we

9

can't do that, it will go to long term. That --

10

we're not going to operate illegally. That -- we

11

wouldn't be in here if we wanted to operate

12

illegally.

13
14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. And I appreciate your
coming up forward and dealing with us. Thank you.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions?

16

MR. STRICKLAND: I have one other question. If by chance

17

you choose not to allow us to operate our ohana, the

18

issues of nonconformity on the screened lanai, would

19

that still be impacted if it's not being considered

20

for bed-and-breakfast use?

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: If it's nonconforming now, no matter what

22

you do, you have to get it to be conforming.

23
24
25

MR. STRICKLAND: It will be needing to -- Okay. No
problem.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So you're going to have to go back and
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redo that anyway.

2

MR. STRICKLAND: Yeah. No problem.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One question for Mr. Strickland,

4

please.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Hokama.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Strickland, you mentioned

7

you're a contractor. You're a licensed contractor?

8

MR. STRICKLAND: Yes, I am.

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So more than anything, you

10

know, I'm sure because you want to maintain your

11

license, you're well aware of certain requirements

12

for permits and inspections. So, you know, I just

13

want to tell you, I appreciate you -- your

14

willingness to come forward and get things squared

15

away properly. I wish everyone would, but --

16
17

MR. STRICKLAND: Yes, I -- that's our intent here, is to
get everything right up to code.

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that's why with your --

19

MR. STRICKLAND: We have already begun that process, by

20
21

the way.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What you need to work -- with your

22

requirements to work with Mr. Goode's Department and

23

his people, I think I don't see a problem

24

personally. I think you can get it squared away,

25

knowing that since you're a licensed contractor,
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you're aware of our code requirements, our

2

electrical standards, plumbing standards, building

3

standards.

4

MR. STRICKLAND: Yes.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So I think you're in an

6

advantageous position better than most people to

7

come up to standards as quickly as possible.

8

MR. STRICKLAND: Yes, we will.

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. A question

12

for the applicant. Mr. Strickland, as I was reading

13

about your cesspool on the property, it hasn't been

14

pumped for over 25 years. Pretty deep cesspool.

15

You've been asked to put in a septic system for the

16

additional units. What's the cost? How much is

17

that going to be costing you?

18
19

MR. STRICKLAND: Okay. Well, we don't have to do that
now.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh.

21

MR. STRICKLAND: This all happened by total accident. We

22

only knew of one cesspool on our property. When our

23

realtor sold us the property, he pointed out -- or

24

actually the listing realtor said there's a cesspool

25

about right here. As far as we knew, there was only
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the one. So we went and we paid an engineer to

2

engineer -- we paid over almost $400 or more to have

3

engineering done for a septic system because we want

4

to come up to code, you know. So in the meantime we

5

were just going through some paperwork and on our

6

disclosure from the real estate transaction it

7

stated that there was a cesspool dug for the ohana.

8

So through a lot of digging and dirt I found out who

9

dug it, I located them. So now we have located that

10

second -- there is adequate cesspools on the

11

property, so there is no septic tank. That was just

12

a waste of my money.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

14

MR. STRICKLAND: Okay.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further question? Discussion,

16

Council members?

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Are you excusing them?

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes. You can sit down.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Your recommendations, Mr. Chairman.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I would like to recommend approval of the

21

whole package and changing the one year to five year

22

effective date. I understand what Councilmember

23

Carroll is saying as far as the affordable rentals.

24

Many of the areas in the Up-Country area or outlying

25

areas are not going to be affordable rentals because
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the costs of the units and the fact that they are

2

out there on larger properties are going to make

3

them by definition not affordable.

4

The other thing, too, is that a lot of the

5

things that we really need to discuss and will be

6

discussed at a later time is the fact that, you

7

know, over 3,000 affordable units were never

8

constructed. So that's where a lot of the

9

deficiency within the affordable housing category

10
11

came about, in my opinion.
I do think that we need to encourage people

12

to come in and to try and register so as much as

13

possible, you know, if we allow these to go through

14

and we start having the discussions -- And we do

15

need to go through the discussions as to whether or

16

not we want -- what we want to do long term. This

17

is something that we really need to go over. At

18

that point, once we determine what we want to do,

19

then we need to restructure how we're doing this.

20

But they've been operating this up -- this

21

business and it's been innocuous in the area that

22

their community is at, so that would be my

23

recommendation.

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So moved.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved by Councilmember Hokama,

2

seconded by Councilmember Johnson. Discussion.

3

Wayne, then Charmaine.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I will probably make an

5

amendment at some point, but if we follow what you

6

stated, Mr. Chairman, as your recommendation, every

7

person that will come in that has an ohana unit will

8

say, this is the blueprint that this Council has

9

set. Then at any point now we will not be able to

10

pursue what ohana units are to be used for and

11

therefore all of them will become vacation rentals

12

because of the demand and probably what one can get

13

from them. I think that that footprint I would not

14

like to follow. It is not one that is in the best

15

interests of where we were headed when we created

16

ohana housing, as Mr. Carroll has stated, and will

17

again need to further legalizing ohana units as

18

transient accommodations. And I think that we need

19

to deal with this. And until then, I would not want

20

to follow your recommendation.

21

So I will make an amendment to allow the two

22

units within the main dwelling as transient

23

accommodation and the ohana unit to not be included

24

as a transient accommodation. That would be my

25

amendment.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. It's been moved and seconded.

3

Discussion? Wayne, you made the motion. Do you

4

have any other comment?

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Bob, you seconded. Bob, you wanted to

7
8
9

make a comment? If not, I'm going to ask Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Just that I
know it's difficult for this Council, for all of us.

10

We have an applicant coming in that is honest, he's

11

come before us. However, as he said, we are the

12

ones that decide what should transpire here. We are

13

the ones that are given the responsibility to make

14

sure that ordinances and laws reflect the needs of

15

our people. Although I realize that not being able

16

to use that as short-term rental might not be the

17

best thing for him, I admire his saying that he will

18

abide by the law. And I would hope that this

19

Council would pass this amendment. I think it's

20

appropriate in the short term, I think it's

21

appropriate in the long term. And at the same time,

22

we need to proceed in addressing the problems we

23

have with short-term rentals. Thank you.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Tavares.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, thank you. I agree with Mr.
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Carroll about the why we had ohana dwellings in the

2

first place and I think we're seeing every day our

3

problems because we have a shortage of housing. I

4

do believe just looking at that rough site plan that

5

if the Stricklands wanted to, you know, increase

6

their main house, remodel it so they could get one

7

or two other bedrooms in there as part of a

8

bed-and-breakfast, I wouldn't see a problem with

9

that.

10

I was trying to remember how many vacation --

11

ohana units have been requested to be

12

bed-and-breakfasts and I only remember one that we

13

approved and I think it was in Kihei. Does the

14

Planning Department recall any other ohana units

15

that have been approved as bed-and-breakfasts?

16

MR. GOODE: I seem to recall there were about three.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: About three.

18

MR. GOODE: Two in Maui Meadows and one in Kula.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's right.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Yeah. I remember the Kula

21

one now. But I think at some point either -- either

22

we're going to make a statement as a Council or

23

we're going to allow a certain time period where

24

people can come in and include ohana units as their

25

bed-and-breakfast operation and then after that
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cutoff time then we say no more, you know. I hate

2

to penalize them for coming in because they're

3

trying to become honest and -- or permitted -- and

4

I'm sure they're honest, but they want their permit

5

so that they are legal. But there are thousands out

6

there that aren't. And what -- what is giving

7

anybody any incentive to come forward if when they

8

see what happens to this case if it gets turned down

9

totally, then they're going to just continue running

10

illegal operations and take their chances. So, you

11

know, I'm not -- I'm not sure of what -- what

12

direction you might want to go in, Mr. Chair, with

13

something like this, but if we have a -- you know,

14

maybe you want to call it an amnesty period and say

15

applications received up to and including a certain

16

date can include vacation -- I mean, can include

17

ohanas and after that it will be absolutely not.

18

You know, maybe something like that would help. I

19

don't know. But, you know, it just -- you know, I

20

am in a real hard place because I believe these

21

people want to become, you know, legal, and at the

22

same time we are faced with that housing shortage of

23

long-term rentals in Maui County and it's a hard

24

place to be. So I don't know if the -- if I could

25

get a comment from the Planning Department about
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having a so-called amnesty period where people would

2

apply and we might look more favorably upon them

3

using an ohana dwelling as a bed-and-breakfast if we

4

could get that word out.

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Because, you know, the ordinance

7

is written only for a main dwelling. It is not

8

written for ohanas.

9

MR. MIN: Yeah. That's a good comment. And, you know, I

10

think just about every one of the applications that

11

we've gotten for bed-and-breakfasts or

12

bed-and-breakfast slash vacation rentals have been

13

for existing operations. I don't -- I can't recall

14

anyone that we have gotten where it's for something

15

new. Okay? So we are really dealing with

16

applicants who are trying to become legitimate.

17

And, you know, many of them -- you know, many of

18

them talk to me about what they're going through in

19

the way of the process and I'm sure you have heard

20

the same thing. There are a lot of -- there's a lot

21

of trepidation on their part. It's not an easy

22

process.

23

Our approach in the Department has been to

24

encourage compliance. I've been asked by, you know,

25

various operators, what should I do? Should I apply
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or not apply? And my recommendation has always been

2

apply because if you don't and if, for example, you

3

get cited, we're going to have to go and investigate

4

and it gets to be a lot more complicated. Again, I

5

think it's a matter of philosophy. And if we want

6

to encourage compliance -- Again, we're dealing with

7

a lot of existing operations, they're already

8

existing and they're simply trying to be legal.

9

There have been other operations where the ohana

10

dwelling has been part of the operation, where

11

there's a main house and an ohana. Typically we

12

have seen these on larger lots, so in Maui Meadows,

13

for example. But, again, there have been

14

reviewed -- these have been reviewed previously by

15

the Council and the Council has in those instances

16

approved it.

17

I think the issue -- the question that's been

18

raised about what is the impact if this type of use

19

suddenly proliferated all over, okay, and everybody

20

decided they wanted to get into this, what would be

21

the impact in our housing market? What would be the

22

impact on property values of surrounding properties?

23

Would we be creating -- encouraging inflated

24

property values? I think these are legitimate

25

questions and these are questions that we have. And
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for that reason we are having a study done to look

2

specifically at this. We had been wanting to get

3

the study done -- in fact, I was hoping to have it

4

done by now. And we were ready to do it, and then

5

September 11th rolled around. And once that

6

happened, you know, the housing market just changed

7

overnight. And so at that point we decided to hold

8

back on it. But I do believe that it is important

9

that we do this so that we have a better

10

understanding of what are some of the public policy

11

impacts. And I think for you here, it would be, you

12

know, very important information. So that is

13

something that we are, you know, in the process of

14

doing. You know, that's my mana'o.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Just as a commentary, early on in this

16

year we started discussing this particular problem

17

with the Administration. And as Chairman of the

18

Land Use Committee it was very much my intent to

19

start getting into looking at how we were going to

20

deal with these bed-and-breakfasts short-term

21

rentals, this whole industry. We met with the Mayor

22

and expressed what our opinion was, and we got a

23

commitment from the Administration that they were

24

not going to enforce the law as it exists right now,

25

which is everything that's outlawed, that's not

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

121

LU 12/3/01

1

legal and not dealt with by ordinance, they were

2

going to enforce the ordinance while we were in the

3

process of looking at this.

4

The Director of Planning also committed that

5

we would be doing a study to be able to quantify

6

what the housing -- the affordable housing needs

7

were and to try and find out what the cause and

8

effects would be so we would have a basis on which

9

to make these decisions on. At the same time, we

10

still have the problem with a lot of people out

11

there that needed to come in and need to really be

12

able to identify what's happening and there's been a

13

desire for a lot of people to become legal. Failing

14

to have the study at this point, you know, it's very

15

difficult to be able to quantify and say, well, this

16

is what's going to happen if we allow things the way

17

they are.

18

But, quite frankly, the bed-and-breakfasts

19

that exist right now, the short-term rental market

20

that exists right now, we're not seeing a whole lot

21

of people rushing to do this kind of business. This

22

is something that's proliferated over the years.

23

It's a very difficult business. It's not something

24

that's so highly profitable that everyone wants to

25

jump into it; otherwise a lot more people would be
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2

in it than are right now.
The question has been we haven't had a

3

process that we could go through to be able to

4

charge the taxes, the appropriate taxes that we need

5

to do to be able to recognize people that are doing

6

this business and to be able to quantify how we're

7

going to deal with it. And this is something we

8

really wanted to do. And as a Council we have had

9

discussions, you know, about bed-and-breakfasts and

10

the various aspects of it to try and see if we could

11

put them in the right categories for a long time.

12

And that's what the intent of the Chair has been,

13

except we have been waiting for the Planning

14

Department to come through with their study so we

15

could really start quantifying this.

16

The other aspect of it was in order to get

17

people to be legal, the costs that are involved are

18

tremendous. You know, you're looking at anywhere

19

between 5 and $20,000 to come in for a Conditional

20

Use Permit. And those kinds of costs for a lot of

21

people that are renting one or two rooms, it's just

22

tremendously high. So these people that are coming

23

in and we're encouraging them to come in to try and

24

become legal, you've got to understand even as the

25

Stricklands have pointed out, they have gone to
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extraordinary costs. And it's not only money, the

2

cost is the physical and mental abuse that you go

3

through to try and get something through this

4

system. And that's something that we really need to

5

try and rectify as well. If we're going to be

6

looking at this and we're going to be saying this is

7

something that we're going to allow, we want you to

8

come in and we want you to register, want you to be

9

the appropriate tax bracket and et cetera, be

10

identified, then this is something we need to deal

11

with. But it's a very deep subject and I know that

12

we have been having a lot of calls from people in

13

the industry to try and deal with this and try and

14

deal with the costs. The -- you know, for myself,

15

if somebody came up to me and said, well, you got to

16

pay 5 to $20,000 to do something, that's a real big

17

expense. That's not something to laugh at. And

18

that's what these people coming in to try and make

19

themselves legal have been going through. The

20

Stricklands have been doing it over a year now to

21

get to this point. Okay. They didn't have to do

22

it.

23

So, in any case, the point I'm trying to make

24

is that, you know, the reason that I am recommending

25

the approval is because I recognize the fact that
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they have gone through all this trouble they didn't

2

have to. And we do need to deal with the other

3

aspects of it.

4
5

Councilmember Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. And, again, I

6

can appreciate your comments. However, in

7

general -- and I'm not picking on the Stricklands,

8

in general people enter this to make money. So if

9

there's a cost involved -- and, again, it comes down

10

to the general old philosophy that in the past we

11

did not want business to be conducted in residential

12

neighborhoods. It was not a permitted use and that

13

is why we have certain type of permit process for

14

consideration of allowing business in a residential

15

area and, again, the requirements of what a business

16

impacts a residential area. We don't ask the same

17

questions about what is the traffic impact, what is

18

the water capacity and is there enough for a four

19

unit request like this. We ask that of all the big

20

developers. We don't ask what's the traffic flow on

21

Haiku Road going to be? We don't say, well, you

22

need to ante up and pay your fair share for

23

improvements at West Kuiaha and Hana Highway. We

24

don't ask about a lot of things. And yet it's

25

still, when you add up 100 requests like this, it
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2

makes an impact, like a big subdivision proposal.
I think, again, the question will come down

3

to what is fairness to any property owner that would

4

like to have some utilization of their real estate.

5

But, nonetheless, getting back to the amendment as

6

proposed by Mr. Nishiki, I can see merit in what he

7

is requesting and I would say then that if his

8

amendment goes through, that we need to consider a

9

less than five-year approval because that will allow

10

the applicant time to make a decision on whether or

11

not it works for them under the situation that we're

12

going to be approving one way or the other on this

13

amendment.

14

I think one thing that is clear, Mr.

15

Chairman, and you brought it up, one way that I plan

16

to bring it up in tomorrow's meeting of my Committee

17

is to create the appropriate taxing rates so that if

18

you're not in compliance, you will face the County's

19

tax rate at a very high level and you will be paying

20

one way or another to the County what is due and

21

fair. You know, you want to be legal, that's one

22

thing, but, then again, you may find a surprising

23

tax bill in your mailbox the next cycle.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, I think everybody
that's come before us to this point has been willing
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to pay a higher tax if recognized. And the problem

2

has been that if you stop all of these operations,

3

you won't have that higher tax base as part of it.

4
5

Councilmember Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, I think now particularly

6

at this time when we're looking at revenue

7

generation, these people are paying GET, they're

8

paying TAT, they're paying taxes that are coming in

9

that are helping to subsidize us as a County in a

10

very difficult period of time. Albeit a lot of it

11

goes to the State, I think that also they're

12

coming -- by coming forward, this is going to be

13

reclassified in an official capacity so that they're

14

automatically recognizing, yeah, they do have to pay

15

more in tax. It has a greater worth to their

16

property. I also think that by accepting something

17

like this that does not set a precedent, because how

18

many situations where somebody is coming from

19

interim, going to R-3, getting caught in this

20

situation that was really through no fault of their

21

own as a part of this elimination of the interim

22

zoning. There's not that many situations that crop

23

up of this nature. I think that when you legitimize

24

your business and you come forward in all honesty,

25

you do so with the expectation that you have costed
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out what it is going to be, you know, to make money.

2

You have done the analysis, you know what you have

3

coming in in terms of income. So for me, I don't

4

really believe that this is going to set a

5

precedent. This is a very unique situation. There

6

are circumstances surrounding each issue that we

7

take up, just as we did on Molokai with approving

8

vacation rental out in a rural area. We look at all

9

these things and take them on their face. I think

10

that with the children being at home, you look at

11

opportunities where the mother can also stay home.

12

I really do not want to be telling these individuals

13

what they should be doing with their property. They

14

have come forward, they have asked what they want in

15

order to make their life choices work. So with all

16

due respect, I will not be supportive of the

17

amendment because I really feel that anyone that

18

comes forward and they have done their homework,

19

they have tried to do everything that they possibly

20

can, I don't want to send the wrong message that

21

you're going to get shot down when you come to the

22

Council. Because this will -- as Ms. Tavares

23

alluded to, it's going to drive perhaps other people

24

underground and then we will have no recognition of

25

those revenues. So I will not be supporting Mr.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

128

LU 12/3/01

1

Nishiki's amendment. Although I share the concerns,

2

I think that because of extenuating circumstances

3

with this particular application and because of the

4

situation that they're looking at, I would really

5

like to accommodate this particular request without

6

setting a future precedent.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Further comments? Councilmember Nishiki.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. For the last time. I

9

remember when we dealt with the Bed-and-Breakfast

10

Ordinance and if you look at the minutes of this

11

ordinance, we mainly said that this was to be done

12

in an area where the bed-and-breakfast operation

13

would be within the main structure. During that

14

time it was brought out that we would not deal with

15

the ohana housing and the reasons why was because,

16

again, that was the ordinance that dealt with trying

17

to have ohana housing for our residents. And I

18

think that during a couple of budget sessions we had

19

mentioned somehow we're going to need to deal with

20

the situation. And I think all of us understand the

21

situation. If we're saying today that there are

22

just few ohana housing that is being used by

23

bed-and-breakfasts, I don't think we're being

24

honest. As one said, all you need to do is look in

25

the internet and see how many of these so-called
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ohana housing are being used by bed-and-breakfasts.

2

I think what needs to be done, again, as referenced

3

by Riki, is, you know, come in, tell us what you're

4

using it for, and we'll make a decision.

5

But I see where in this situation we're not

6

taking away the two units that he wants to use in

7

his main unit for transient bed-and-breakfast.

8

Also, we're not taking away the structure that he

9

has now to be used for long-term rentals. So both

10

of the circumstances that I just prefaced would be

11

able -- or enable him to create an income. We're

12

not stopping him in any way. And so for this

13

reason, I feel that this is the direction that this

14

Council should be headed towards in dealing with

15

this important question.

16

And I would encourage whoever has this matter

17

in their Committee, let's promptly respond and --

18

and deal with the circumstances that we were talking

19

about dealing with two years ago during budget

20

session.

21
22

Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: In dealing with the bed-and-breakfast

23

industry, the history on this actually started when

24

we were looking at the Home Occupation Bill. In

25

home occupation we were looking at all of the
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different people that have businesses operating

2

out of their home in this entire County.

3

Bed-and-breakfast was one of the areas that we

4

decided to start with. And in dealing with

5

bed-and-breakfast when we started with this issue,

6

we decided to separate it into other areas so that

7

we could concentrate on one area and try and get

8

something passed. It wasn't that ohana units wasn't

9

going to be discussed in this realm or not. It

10

wasn't that more than six units were not going to be

11

discussed or whether the owner was not occupying the

12

house was not going to be discussed. It was

13

narrowed down to have a start and a discussion area.

14

In trying to create the ordinances with the

15

entire home occupation, one of the things we were

16

looking at is we have rules in place right now that

17

essentially makes criminals out of many, many

18

members within our community because they are in

19

violation of code and in violation of our laws. And

20

if we go out and we start enforcing the rules that

21

we have, essentially we're taking probably half our

22

population and we're going to say you guys are

23

criminals. The attempt at working in this area was

24

to try and start working and logically discussing

25

ways in which we can make decisions on how we're
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1

going to allow these businesses in this type of

2

industry to work and what the rules and the

3

requirements were going to be, and where the

4

boundaries were going to be in each of these areas.

5

Okay.

6

In that discussion, ohana units -- and very

7

specific. Originally the start of ohana units was

8

just going to be for family. It was for the parent

9

that wanted to let their kids have their house and

10

they could go live in the back, or the kids moving

11

back in, they could go live in the back with the

12

parents living in the main house. That's how this

13

ohana thing started. And it wasn't meant as

14

long-term rentals for anybody besides family. But

15

the industries and the practices have changed over

16

the years whereby if we were to say that the

17

requirement for an ohana unit is only family can be

18

there, we'd find that most of the ohana units

19

wouldn't comply. And the same thing is true with

20

looking at the ohana units and not renting it out to

21

anybody except family.

22

So we do need to analyze this entire

23

industry. It is within the Land Use Committee.

24

This is something that we need to deal with. And

25

part of what we're having hang-ups on is working
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through the bills that will deal with home

2

occupation, that will deal with various aspects of

3

this short-term rental industry.
The conditional permits basically on this

4
5

particular item and many items do not deal directly

6

with bed-and-breakfast as defined by

7

bed-and-breakfast. The conditional permit allows us

8

to give variations of the short-term rental industry

9

and to say something is permittable because we say

10

it's permittable even though the laws do not allow

11

it in -- for this specific area. That's what the

12

special use and conditional use permits are for.

13

And that's what this applicant is coming before us

14

for.

15

And the industry is a very -- the questions

16

are going to have to be discussed and we as Council

17

members are going to really have to put some time in

18

to decide what is it -- the exact direction is going

19

to be. If we were to remove all of the units right

20

now out of short-term rentals that are not clearly

21

defined by bed-and-breakfast, my personal opinion is

22

that our economy would take a very big tumble. And

23

I have very grave concerns about that. Recognizing

24

these units and having them come in to register so

25

that you can put them in their appropriate brackets
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and we can tax them appropriately, you're not seeing

2

hundreds of people rushing to us to be able to get

3

permitted. And there's a reason. It costs so much

4

to do this and this is such an onerous process that

5

it's very difficult for people to come through this

6

process and they get bashed and battered the entire

7

way through. So, you know, I really respect those

8

people that are coming through and trying to work

9

with us to try and get legitimatized, which is why

10

I'm not going to be supporting the amendment.
Any further discussion? If not, we have an

11
12

amendment on the floor. All those in favor say aye.

13

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed?

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We have three noes and five ayes. The

18

amendment is there. Okay.

19

VOTE: AYES:

20

NOES:

21
22
23
24
25

ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Molina,
Nishiki, and Tavares.
Councilmember Johnson, Kane and Chair
Arakawa.
None.
None.
Councilmember Kawano.
APPROVING THE DELETION OF TEXT "AND IN A
TWO-BEDROOM SECOND DWELLING."

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So the main motion as amended which --
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2

Councilmember Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. In being

3

consistent with previous positions that I've taken

4

regarding conditional use permits, I feel that since

5

this is the first time that this applicant has come

6

forward, I think five years is too long for us to

7

set a reference point to know how this conditional

8

use permit is going to work out. I understand one

9

year is a short time; however, I disagree with the

10

point made earlier that -- The process of coming in

11

and going through the extension request should not

12

take nearly as long as it did initially. And so I

13

think that this -- I would hope that this body would

14

consider, if not a one-year and because it's been

15

recommended by you, Chair, as a five-year, I would

16

ask it to be reduced down to a three-year period.

17

At least give the time for the Department to be

18

able to analyze -- if there are any issues that come

19

forward within that three-year period, that they

20

give them the appropriate time and be able to deal

21

with issues that may come forward out of this

22

application.

23

So at this time I'm going to ask for

24

consideration to an amendment to go from five years

25

down to three years for the -- for this conditional
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use permit.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Well, currently we are at one year,

4
5
6

so -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, Mr. Chair, your recommendation
and it was made a main motion was for five years.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So right now what's before us is five

9
10
11
12

years. So my request and the amendment is for three
years.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. It's been moved by Councilmember
Kane and seconded by Charmaine?

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: That the conditional permit shall be for a

15

period of three years. Okay. Any discussion?

16

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One quick comment.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mr. Hokama.

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Speaking for the amendment,

19

Chairman, I think that's a reasonable compromise. I

20

think if you look at our bed-and-breakfast chapter

21

in our code, B&B permits are valid for one year

22

before renewal before either the Council or the

23

Planning Department, Mr. Min as the director. So as

24

a conditional permit, I think this three years for a

25

first pass is reasonable. I think it would also
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allow the applicant time to consider whether they

2

want to continue this particular business venture

3

that they're endeavoring to get approval for this

4

afternoon. So I will be supporting the amendment.

5
6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other discussion?
Councilmember Johnson.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I have a question, Mr. Chair. I

8

know that there was another bed-and-breakfast that

9

had come before us probably less than a month ago

10

and I believe we approved that for I believe it was

11

a five-year period?

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Uh-huh.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Do you recall if it was five or if

14
15
16

it was three?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: We've done any number of -- we've done
one, three, and five.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Because I know that -- I'm

18

trying to think of the name of the individual.

19

Anyway, I know it was a single applicant that had

20

come forward without a representative.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Right.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I believe we granted them a

23

five-year period. So I'm -- I'm inclined to go with

24

the five-year period. If it does not pass, I

25

understand the concerns of the other Council
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members, but I think that particularly because we've

2

now removed a substantial part of the income that

3

they were going to use to hopefully offset the

4

initial cost of going in, I think that particularly

5

in this situation to come back again -- And it is

6

not easy to get on the Planning Department docket,

7

believe me. It's a long list and it's a long

8

process. Even if it is to come back for renewal,

9

it's not an easy thing to do. And I've heard that

10

from a number of individuals who've done that. So

11

I'll be supporting my initial five-year request.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I think this is a

14

fair compromise given the circumstances surrounding

15

this particular application. I think in this

16

situation for this couple is unusual in that there

17

were other issues not even related to

18

bed-and-breakfast that came into play because of

19

questions about setbacks, nonpermitted structures

20

and things like that are usually not included in

21

applications for bed-and-breakfasts operations.

22

One of the things that -- I think Jo Anne

23

brings out a really good point. I would rather than

24

us guessing all the time about how many of what kind

25

have we done and for how long, I would like to see
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your staff or in this Committee that somebody is

2

keeping track. And maybe we'll go back, it's not

3

been that long, and start to identify all the

4

permits that have come to the Council and what they

5

have been approved for, length of time and what

6

kind, you know, whether it's two bedroom, three,

7

four, whatever. I don't think it would be that

8

difficult to create a database that we will keep,

9

you know, that we can keep and refer to. Because I

10

think the one Jo Anne is referring to was a -- was a

11

reapplication of an initial bed-and-breakfast

12

applicant. I'm not particularly -- I'm not really

13

sure, but I think that's the one that we did that

14

was five years. It was an extension of the -- or a

15

reapplication or an extension for an original

16

permit, bed-and-breakfast permit. So I think this

17

is a good compromise and I'll be supporting the

18

amendment.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. As far as what you're suggesting,

20

we'll have staff try and compile one. I know that

21

we have done a series of different ones depending on

22

the particular circumstances. Originally my

23

recommendation was three years, but so -- you know,

24

I thought it was a good compromise. If -- five

25

years doesn't seem too bad to me because we have
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done five years and because this is an individual

2

unit. But I can support the three year because it's

3

more than the one year that they originally applied

4

for, so it will be a help in the right direction.

5

Anyway, it's a good compromise.
Any further discussion? Councilmember

6
7
8
9

Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One quick question, please, Mr.
Chairman.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama.

11

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Does the Planning Department

12

already have a database on exactly what Ms. Tavares

13

is asking for? You must know when somebody is going

14

to come for either a renewal or their permit is

15

going to expire?

16

MR. MIN: Yeah, we do have a database for our approved

17

B&Bs and those that are filed for B&B application or

18

a Conditional Use Permit. Yeah, we do have that

19

information.

20

Mr. Chair, could I make a comment?

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

22

MR. MIN: In terms of how this conditional permit

23

application has been modified, by deleting the use

24

of the cottage and limiting the number of rooms to

25

two rooms within the main house, I just like to
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point out that this particular operation would

2

qualify as a -- what we call a Type I

3

bed-and-breakfast. Okay? And we do have a permit

4

procedure for that. So in the future, when the

5

applicant comes in to apply for a time extension, if

6

the operation remains --

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The way it is.

8

MR. MIN: -- two units with two rooms within the main

9

house, they would be applying for a Type I

10

bed-and-breakfast permit. Now, that permit is

11

approved administratively. Okay. So I just want to

12

point that out to you.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's understood.

14

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. John, is that in R-2, R-3 district,

15

or just -- it's a rural district. I'm not sure that

16

the B&B --

17

MR. MIN: No. The zoning here is R-3 residential.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: R-3.

19

MR. MIN: So the bed-and-breakfast permit procedure would

20

apply.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's residential, not rural.

22

MR. MIN: That's correct.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.

24
25

Let's see. Did we vote on this? Did we
actually take a vote?
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1

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We didn't take a vote yet.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, having just heard what

5

John said, I do agree, then, that as long as it's

6

not going to be cumbersome and he can approve the

7

permit administratively because of the way that it

8

is configured with the amendment that Mr. Nishiki

9

made, then I -- I'll support the three years only

10

because of the fact it is not going to raise an

11

additional expense for the applicant.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Molina.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. A question

14

for Mr. Min.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: John, under this -- these permit

17

condition -- these permits being approved

18

administratively, how long would the process take in

19

the case of a situation like this for Type I?

20

MR. MIN: Yeah. Because it's an administrative approval

21

and in this case because it's -- it would have been

22

in operation and it's already gone through a prior

23

review, I would say that the review would be

24

anywhere from -- probably about a month. I would

25

give that as our lead time for review.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I just bring this up because

2

all the concern of how cumbersome the process is and

3

shortening the time, so --

4

MR. MIN: Yeah. You know, let me just say as a practical

5

matter that administrative approvals are a lot more

6

efficient and less -- and less difficult on an

7

applicant than an application that would involve a

8

public hearing and all those other kinds of

9

requirements. Okay.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. I just sort of feel, you

11

know, for the applicants like the Stricklands that

12

are here. There's so much scrutiny -- you know,

13

which is justified, but I can see why people are

14

discouraged from coming out to be legal. So thank

15

you for that -- sharing that information with us,

16

Mr. Min.

17
18

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further discussion? If not, we

19

have an amendment on the floor. All those in favor

20

say aye.

21

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.

23
24
25
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VOTE: AYES:

2
3
4
5

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

6
7

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and
Chair Arakawa.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Kawano.
APPROVING CONDITION THAT THE CONDITIONAL
PERMIT SHALL BE VALID FOR A PERIOD OF
THREE YEARS.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: On the main motion, just a point of

11

clarification from a comment or comments that you

12

made, you were referencing having a discussion with

13

the Mayor in your commentary, I think you referred

14

to it as a commentary, and you were using language

15

that was inclusive, you were using the language we,

16

and prior to that you used -- you made a statement

17

as the Land Use Chair and it being in this

18

Committee, that you approached the Mayor regarding

19

the issue of bed-and-breakfasts and home occupation,

20

if I'm not mistaken. And I kind of let it go too

21

far. But the clarification that I am asking for is

22

that you used the inclusive language of we. Can you

23

clarify who we is besides yourself on this body

24

right here? Did anybody else on this body go with

25

you to speak to the Mayor regarding this particular
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issue?

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: No, not from this body.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So we is -- what are you

4
5

representing when you use the word we?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: The topic came under discussion -- the

6

members of the Board of Realtors brought this topic

7

up, and we scheduled a meeting with the Mayor to

8

discuss this topic.

9
10
11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So it's you and the Board of
Realtors.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: They also had the independent discussion

12

with the Mayor. We also scheduled meetings with the

13

Department as well. And because this topic is in

14

this Committee, as Chairman of the Committee, we

15

have to work with the Department to try and figure

16

out how we're going to address the topic. So we've

17

had discussions with the Department as to what they

18

want to do, the fact that we want to do a survey.

19

This was brought up by the Department, they wanted

20

to do a survey to find out what the affordable

21

housing was, what the necessary information was. So

22

we've had that discussion both in our internal

23

discussions as preparation for the topic as well as

24

external discussions with other members from the

25

community. So --
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And as the Land Use Chair you plan on

2

bringing that information to this body for a future

3

discussion, is that what your intention is?

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: When the topic is discussed --

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- then we'll be bringing it up.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA: But I have to do the prep work for it.

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you for the clarification.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Point of information now, Mr. Chair.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And this is a question to -- and we

14

are on the main motion and this is to Mr. Min. On

15

the cover letter where it talks about Condition No.

16

18 being added as a recommendation by the Department

17

and I think the letter by Mr. and Mrs. Strickland

18

questioned that particular item as maybe not being

19

consistent with other B&B applicants. Can you

20

respond to that, Mr. Min? Is this something that

21

you folks -- is this a standard condition that you

22

have put on to all bed-and-breakfasts?

23

MR. MIN: Yeah.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And if not, why this one and not the

25

other ones?
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MR. MIN: Okay. This particular condition was recommended

2

by a member of the Planning Commission. It did not

3

come from the Department.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Before you go any further.

5

MR. MIN: Yeah.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm reading from your cover letter

7

that says that the Commission added -- Excuse me.

8

Recommended by the -- Okay. I apologize. Thank

9

you. It's from a Commission member. I thought it

10

was from you. I read it wrong.

11

MR. MIN: That's correct.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

13

MR. MIN: Yeah.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Anyway, if you can respond to that

15

question, is it standard or --

16

MR. MIN: Yeah. It is not a standard condition. And it

17

was -- it was brought up by a member of the

18

Commission because they wanted to be sure that the

19

surrounding neighbors and the surrounding neighbors

20

in this particular instance, there's some lands that

21

are in the Ag. District so you have some large lots

22

and you also have some smaller residential

23

properties, that they simply have the opportunity

24

and secondly be aware that a time extension is being

25

applied for and if there are any issues or concerns,
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they have the opportunity to communicate that. And

2

that was the intent. But it is something which was

3

unique. It's not a standard condition for these

4

types of permits. But it was brought up at the

5

Commission review and it was put in as a condition.

6
7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
And, Mr. Chair, in light of what has occurred

8

this evening as far as it evolving to what it is

9

now, do you think this is still necessary? In light

10

of the fact that it's going to come before you

11

administratively versus coming up before us, do you

12

feel that this is a condition or if you can reflect

13

the context of why they wanted that condition there,

14

did it have any relevance to what has occurred now

15

as far as it being a Type I versus a Type II.

16

MR. MIN: Yeah. Well, I think in light of the fact that

17

the operation for, you know, vacation rental use has

18

been down scaled and seeing as we have procedures

19

for a bed-and-breakfast permit, you know, my

20

recommendation would be let's follow the procedure

21

in the B&B Chapter, the bed-and-breakfast permit

22

provisions. I believe that when you do apply for a

23

bed-and-breakfast permit, the official permit, you

24

do have to do a notification of surrounding property

25

owners. I think that intent will be met. The
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difference, though, is that a Type I

2

bed-and-breakfast permit application does not

3

require a public hearing, so the approval process is

4

more simplified because it's done administratively.

5

Okay. Subsequent time extensions of a B&B permit do

6

not require the notification and public hearing.

7

Okay. So that is a procedure that we have that's

8

the bed-and-breakfast procedure. My recommendation

9

would be that we follow that procedure if the

10

project qualifies, you know, under that. And so I

11

would recommend that this particular condition be

12

deleted.

13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
Mr. Chair, I would like to amend this -amend the main motion to delete Condition No. 18.

16

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved by Councilmember Kane,

18

seconded by Councilmember Carroll. Discussion.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, for discussion.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yeah.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And I know and I'll anticipate a

22

response to this opposing this particular amendment

23

and I understand it as far as anticipating what it

24

will be about, but I just want to say that we are

25

now looking at an application that has been reduced
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dramatically to the point where we're now dealing

2

with somebody who is going to be using two of their

3

own bedrooms in their own house versus the scale

4

that it was earlier, an ohana dwelling plus that, so

5

it's being halved. If -- and the mechanism is there

6

that if there are problems, you're going to be sure

7

to hear about it. And I'm sure the Planning

8

Department will be sure to hear about it if this

9

application or this applicant poses a problem on

10

their street specifically. So I think because of

11

what has evolved, I think this is something that I

12

can live with and I ask the other members to

13

consider in light of the fact that it is a cost

14

issue. It is not trying to avoid notifying their

15

neighbors because I think the neighbors are aware of

16

the fact. You have a supportive letter in there

17

from a neighbor and if there are neighbors out there

18

who are opposed to this, which nobody ever came up

19

with this initial application that was for four

20

units, if there is going to be a problem, I'm sure

21

somebody will show up at the doorstep of Mr. Min to

22

let him know that this is a problem. So I ask for

23

the consideration of the body.

24
25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. And, Councilmember Kane, because we
had discussion when we passed the bed-and-breakfast
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item with -- they would be following what was

2

recommended, what was passed by Council, so whatever

3

notification, whatever processes there was discussed

4

and passed by full Council, so it should be very

5

much appropriate.
Any further discussion? Councilmember

6
7

Johnson.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just concur with what Mr. Min

9

said that we have to treat all the people equally.

10

And because this would be unfair to them to impose a

11

condition that wouldn't have been imposed otherwise

12

on the type of reapplication when they come to renew

13

their permit, I just think it's only fair that we

14

eliminate it. And actually I think at this point it

15

seems like a moot point if it's an administrative

16

approval. Thank you.

17
18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Further discussion? If not, all in
favor say aye.

19

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed. Motion carried.

21

VOTE: AYES:

22
23
24
25

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and
Chair Arakawa.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Kawano.
APPROVING THE DELETION OF CONDITION 18.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Are there any objections to having Mr.

2

Strickland comment since we are adjusting what he

3

has to do?

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

5

MR. STRICKLAND: I wanted to ask you --

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA: You need to speak into the mike.

7

MR. STRICKLAND: I don't wish to contest your decision,

8

you've made your decision as a group and I respect

9

that, I am not sure I understand perfectly well. Am

10

I understanding that the ohana unit as of what date

11

is to be not used as -- Is there a date where we

12

cannot use it as -- we have -- My point is we have

13

bookings till April and if you effectively shut us

14

down today, it's going to be a huge cost we have to

15

refund out. I don't understand -- I'm sure the

16

three-year period or the -- I'm a little in the gray

17

here. Could you clear me up on that as far as using

18

the ohana unit?

19
20

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Mr. Strickland, the use of the
ohana unit was not a permitted use.

21

MR. STRICKLAND: Right.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: So technically by not allowing it, it's

23

always been prohibited.

24

MR. STRICKLAND: Okay.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So there's no shut-down date or
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1

there's no extension because it was always a

2

prohibited use.

3

MR. STRICKLAND: Okay.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And what we did not -- what we the body

5

has chosen to do is not allow it as a permitted use.

6

MR. STRICKLAND: Okay.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The three-year time period is your

8

Conditional Use Permit will run for three years. So

9

instead of coming in next year for a one-year, you

10

now have to come in in the third year.

11

MR. STRICKLAND: Right.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA: The Type I or Type II permit that you're

13

going to be required, in the bed-and-breakfast

14

ordinance there are rules that apply to that. And

15

you can talk to the Department and they can explain

16

to you what those rules are for your reapplication.

17

MR. STRICKLAND: Okay.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: They're spelled out in the

19

Bed-and-Breakfast Ordinance, so they should be able

20

to clarify that for you.

21

MR. MINATOYA: Chairman.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Richard.

23

MR. MINATOYA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As the enforcement

24

attorney for all of the various departments, I just

25

need to point out that the applicants did come in
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1

under the amnesty program and were allowed to

2

operate pending the termination of their permit

3

application. Based on that, I would recommend that

4

they finish -- be allowed to finish up their

5

bookings for the ohana unit, but not take any new

6

bookings.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Councilmember Kane.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: With that being said, then I think

9

it's appropriate for this body to ask for a record

10

of that booking so that we can just be clear and not

11

things being thrown in in the end. And I'm not

12

suggesting at all that that would be done, but

13

because this is a particular program that's in place

14

and because our corporation -- our legal counsel has

15

made a position on this particular issue, I think

16

it's appropriate that we ask for documentation

17

justifying the comments that were just made

18

regarding bookings till April and we have that

19

documentation as part of the -- as far as the

20

attachments to what we're going to be acting on.

21
22

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Why don't we have them report to the
Department, have them discuss with the Department?

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah.

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Provide that information to the Department

25

because they're the enforcing branch.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I have no problem with that.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA: And without objections, this body -- as a

3

matter of fact, I'll take a motion to approve the

4

use till the end of April.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Well, instead of that, Mr. Chair, as

6

you said, as long as the Department understands how

7

they're going to be working with this applicant,

8

unless there's any objections, do it without a

9

motion as long as the understanding and the intent

10
11
12
13

is there.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any objections to allowing the applicant
to -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: State it in the Committee report,

14

Mr. Chairman, and I think it will be clear of the

15

Committee's intentions.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. No objections?

17

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Then you're clear on that? Okay.

19

Okay. We're at the --

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Main motion.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA: -- main motion as amended. And please be

22

aware that when the original motion was made, we

23

were to eliminate Condition 7, which is in here.

24

Okay? That was the recommendation from the

25

Department that since it has already been met.
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Any discussion? If not, all those in favor

1
2

say aye.

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.

5

VOTE: AYES:

6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and
Chair Arakawa.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Kawano.
FIRST READING OF BILL, AS REVISED.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. We have one more item on our
calendar -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, can we have a short
recess, please.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Long recess, please.

16

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wait a few seconds. Before we discuss

17

this, before we recess, we have two options. And

18

the reason I don't want to recess is because I want

19

to discuss the options because one of the options is

20

to recess the meeting till Thursday morning because

21

we have Thursday available. And in posting this we

22

had posted that we would extend -- recess till

23

Thursday if necessary. And it's 5:30 right now and

24

the topic that we're going to be discussing will

25

probably take many hours because it will be a longer
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1

discussion. The other option is to recess, take

2

dinner, and then come back after dinner. Okay.

3

What is the preference of the Committee?

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Recess to Thursday.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No objection.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No objections.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Recess to Thursday,

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'll be absent.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Hold it. Hold it. Hold it. Hold it two

9

o'clock?

10

seconds. I'm going to take a 30-second recess so my

11

aide can run down here and tell me that I have

12

something or not. Short recess.

(Gavel.)

13

RECESS: 5:35 p.m.

14

RECONVENE: 5:36 p.m.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I can't make it Thursday morning. How

16

about 1:30 Thursday afternoon?

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Whose slot is that?

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mine. No problem.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA: 1:30 Thursday? That's the Planning

20

Department, Planning meeting. Any objections to

21

recessing until 1:30 --

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No objections.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 1:30 Thursday?

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA: 1:30 Thursday.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's even better than 9 o'clock.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

3

RECESS:

I'll still be absent.

Meeting recessed.

(Gavel.)

5:40 p.m.

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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